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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company
for the financial period from 1 April 2014 o 30 September 2015,

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END

The Company has changed its financial year end from 31 March 1o 30 September. Accordingly, the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial period ended 30 September 2015 cover an 18-
month period from 1 April 2014 to 30 September 2015 as compared to the 12-month period from 1 April 2013
to 31 Margh 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and the provision of management

services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements. There
have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial period.

RESULTS
The Group The Company

RM'C00 RM'000
Profit/(Loss) after taxation for the financial period 15,128 (14)
Attributable to:-
Owners of the Company 15,103 (14)
Non-controlling interests 25 -

15,128 (14)

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid since the end of the previous financial year and the directors do not recommend
payment of any dividend for the cument financial period.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

All material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial period are disclosed in the
financial statements.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
During the financial peried:-

(a) the Company increased its authorised share capital from RM100,000,000 to RM750,000,000 by the
creation of 1,300,000,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each;

{b) the Company increased iis issued and paid-up share capital from RM79,180,736 to RM367,743,352
by-

() the issuance of 102,040,816 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each at an issue price of
RMO.98 per share (“Reinvestment Shares”) for the purpose of acquisition of a subsidiary as
disclosed in Note 36 to the financial statements; and

i) the issuance of a renounceable rights issue of 475,084,416 new ordinary shares of RM0.50
each (“Rights Shares”) at an issue price of RM0.80 per Rights Share on the basis of 3 Rights
Shares for every 1 existing ordinary share held together with 158,361,472 new free
detachable warrants ("Warrants”) on the basis of 1 free Warrant for every 3 Rights Shares
subscribed for (“Rights Issue”).

The new ordinary shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the
Company; and

(c) there was no issue of debentures by the Company.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

During the financial period, no options were granted by the Company to any person to fake up any unissued
shares in the Company.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

WARRANTS

The Warrants are constituted by the Deed Pelt dated 11 June 2015 (“Deed Poll).

On 23 July 2015, 158,361,472 Warmrants were issued free by the Company pursuant to the Rights Issue on the
basis of one (1) Warrant for every three (3) Rights Shares.

The salient features of the Warrants are as follows:-

Terms

Form and detachability

Issue price of Wamants

Board Lot

Listing

Tenure of Warmranis

Exercise Period

Exercise Price

Exercise Rights

Voting Rights

Status of new ordinary
shares to be issued
pursuant to the exercise
of the Warrants

Goveming Law

Details

The Warrants will be issued in registered form and will immediately be detached
from the Rights Shares upon allotment and issuance and separately traded on
Bursa Securities. The Warrants will be constituted by the Deed Poll.

The Warrants are o be issued free to the entitted Shareholders and/or
renounceesftransferees who subscribe for the Rights Shares on the basis of one
(1) free Warrant for every three (3) Rights Shares.

For the purposes of trading on Bursa Securities, a board lot of Warrants will be in
one hundred (100) units, or such denomination as determined by Bursa
Securities.

Approval has been obtained from Bursa Securities on 11 April 2014 for the
admission of the Warrants to the Official List of Bursa Securities, and for the
listing of and quotation for the Rights Shares and the Warrants and new Sunsuria
Shares arising from the exercise of the Warrants.

Five (5) years from the date of issuance of the Warrants.

The Warrants may be exercised at any time within the period commencing the
date of issue of the Warrants and will be expiring on 22 July 2020. Any Warrants
not exercised during the Exercise Period will thereafter lapse and cease 1o be
valid. '

RM1.50 payable in full upon exercise of each Warrant.

Each Warrant carries the entitement, at any time during the Exercise Period, to
subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.50 each in the Company at the
Exercise Price.

The Wamants do not entitle the registered holders thereof to any voting rights in
any general meeting of the Company until and unless such holders of the
Warrants exercise their Warrants for new ordinary shares.

The new ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Wamants
shall, upon allotment and issue, rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company except that they shall not be entitled to any
dividends, rights, allotments andfor other distributions, the entitement date of
which is prior to the allotment date of the new ordinary shares to be issued arising
from the exercise of the Warrants.

Laws and regulations of Malaysia.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

DIRECTORS' REPORT

WARRANTS (CONT’D}
The movements in the Warrants since the listing and quotation thareof are as follows:-

Entitlernent For Ordinary Shares Of RMO0.50 each

At At
1.4.2014 lssues Exercised 30.9.2015
Number of unexercised Warrants - 158,361,472 - 158,361,472

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took
reasonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the
making of allowance for impairment losses on receivables, and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts
had been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for impaiment losses on receivables.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the further writing
off of bad debts, or the additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company.

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took
reasonable steps to ascertain that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to be realised in
the ordinary course of business, including their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of
the Company, have been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values
atiributed fo the current assets in the financial statements misleading.

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render

adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company
misleading or inappropriate.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
At the date of this report, there does not exist:-

(a) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial
period which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(b)  any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
period.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to
become enforceable within the period of twelve {12) months after the end of the financial period which, in the
opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet
their obligations when they fall due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise deait with in this
report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in
the financial statements misleading.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial period were not, in the
opinion of the directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a matenal and unusual
nature,

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report any item,
transaciion or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial period.

DIRECTORS
The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:-

Datuk Ter Leong Yap

Koong Wai Seng

Dato’ Tan Tian Meng

Liew Jee Min @ Chong Jee Min

Datin Loa Bee Ha (Appointed on 21 August 2014)

Alexon Khor Swek Chen (Appointed on 13 February 2015)
Tan Pei Geok (Appointed on 1 October 2015)

Wong Yuen Teck (Resigned on 30 September 2015)
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the
financial period in shares and options over shares of the Company and its related corporations during the
financial period are as follows:-

«——— Number Of Ordinary Shares Of RM0.50 Each —»

At At
1.4.2014 Bought Sold 30.9.2015
Direct Interests In The Company
Datuk Ter Leong Yap 33,728,000 132,193,872 - 165,921,872
Dato’ Tan Tian Meng 6,957,200 20,871,600  (13,000,000) 14,828,800
Indirect Inforest In The Company
Datuk Ter Leong Yap # 45,639,344 249,676,664 - 295,316,008
< Number Of Warrants >
At At
1.4.2014 Bought Sold 30.9.2015
Direct Inferests in The Company
Datuk Ter Leong Yap - 37,300,106 ~ - 37,300,106
Dato’ Tan Tian Meng - 6,957,200 4 - 6,957,200
indirect Interest In The Company
Datuk Ter Leong Yap # - 49,638,810+ - 49,638,810
Notes:-
# - Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Ter Equity Sdn. Bhd., Ter Capital Sdn.
Bhd. and THK Capital Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8A of the Companies Act 1965.
A . Jssuance of warrants pursuant to the Rights Issue during the financial period.

By viriue of their shareholdings in the Company, Datuk Ter Leong Yap is deemed to have interests in shares
in its related corporations during the financial period to the extent of the Company’s interests, in accordance
with Section 6A of the Companies Act 1965.

The other directors holding office at the end of the financial period had no interest in shares and optiens
over shares of the Company or its related corporations during the financial period. :

Page ©



SUNSURIA BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235-K

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the pravious financial year, no director has received or become eniitied to receive any benefit
{other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by
directors as shown in the financial statements, or the fixed salaty of a full-time employee of the Company) by
reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the
director is 2 member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest except for any
benefits which may be deemed to arise from transactions entered inte in the ordinary course of business with
companies in which certain directors have substantial financial interests as disclosed in Note 40 to the financial
statements. .

Neither during nor at the end of the financial period was the Group or the Company a party to any
arrangements whose object is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL PERIOD

The significant events during the financial period are disclosed in Note 45 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The significant events occuiring after the reporting period are disclosed in Note 46 to the financial statements.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs. Crowe Horwath, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 1 9 JAN 2016

Datuk Ter Leong Yap

Koong Wai Seng
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 -K

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

We, Datuk Ter Leong Yap and Koong Wai Seng, being two of the directors of Sunsuria Berhad, state that,
in the opinion of the direciors, the financiat statements set out on pages 13 to 122 are drawn up in
accordance with Financial Reporiing Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in
Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company at 30
September 2015 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial pericd ended on that
date.

The supplementary information set out in Note 48, which is not part of the financial staternents, is prepared in
all material respects, in accordance with Guidance on Speciat Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and
Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
Listing Reguirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the directive of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 1 5 JAN 2016

4&: |

Datuk Ter Leong Yap

STATUTORY DECLARATION

I, Koong Wai Seng, 1/C No. 670301-10-6259, being the director primarily responsible for the financial
management of Sunsuria Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out
on pages 13 to 122 are, to the best of my knowiedge and belief, correct, and | make this solemn
declaration conscientiously belleving the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
Koong Wai Seng, I/C No. 828301538
at Kuala Lumpur in the Patti-Fed
on this /

19 JAN 2016

No. W - 275 -;
i Batin Hajah Raihela Wanohik

- Koong Wai Seng
Before me
Rabin & Associaies
.§7.8 _
Biok C, Ting. 12 Uais s Page 9
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. CI’ owe Horwathm Growe Horwath &F 1018

Chartersd Accountants
Mamber Crowa Honwath Intarnalional

Kuala Lurmpur Office

Laval 16 Tower C, Megan Avenue Il
12 Jalan ‘Yap Kwan Seng

50450 Kuala Lumpur, Mataysia

Main +6 03 2758 9999
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF E,i‘,’;;i o e e
SUNSURIA BERHAD lnfo@cmwahomstl;.corﬁr:nyy

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No; 8235 -K

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Sunsuria Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial
position as at 30 September 2015 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the
financial period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, as set out on pages 1310 122.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a
true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror. '

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. :

An audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror. in making those risk
assessments, we consider intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation of financiai statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Page 10
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Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SUNSURIA BERHAD (CONT’D)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Company No: 8235 -K

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial posifion of the Group and of
the Company as of 30 Sepiember 2015 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial
period then ended in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

Report on Other Lega! and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we alsa report the following:-

{a) in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by
the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acied as auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

{b) We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ report of a subsidiary of which we
have not acted as auditors, which is indicated in Note 5to the financial statements.

{c) We are safisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with
the Company's financiai statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the
purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received
satisfactory information and exptanations required by us for those purposes.

{d) The audit report on the financial statements of the subsidiary did not contain any qualification or
any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

Other Reporting Responsibilities

The supplementary information set out in Note 48 on page 123 [s disclosed to meet the requirement of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financia! statements. The directors are responsible
for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1,
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
("MIA Guidance") and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary
information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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Crowe Horwath..

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SUNSURIA BERHAD (CONT'D)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Company No: 8235 -K
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of

the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

(e Moot

Crowe Horwath Chin Kit Seong
Firm No: AF 1018 Approval No: 3030/01/17 {J)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant
15 JAN 201
Kuata Lumpur
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: §235-K

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.8.2015 31.3.2014
Note RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries S - - 357,655 23,543
investments in associates 8 670 666 594 594
Other investment 7 25 25 - -
Property, plant and equipment 8 8,908 3,503 3,020 493
Investment properties | 9 74,778 6,704 1,798 1,854
Goodwill 10 8,769 - - -
Land held for property development 11 508,089 - - -
Deferred tax asset 12 261 - - -
599,500 10,988 363,087 26,484
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 43 4930 4,285 - -
Property development costs 14 223,123 48,807 - -
Accrued billings 14 50,076 - - -
Trade receivables 15 13,607 7.585 - -
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 16 1,738 386 576 54
Amount owing by subsidiaries 17 - - 174,050 43,402
Amount owing by related parties 18 3,138 - 3,138 -
Dividend receivable - - 15,123 -
Tax refundable 27 86 - 5
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 19 11,128 21,508 10,596 12,347
Cash and bank balances 20 77,440 11,980 7,561 3,423
385,207 04,648 211,044 50,231
Assets of disposal group/
Non-cumrent asset held for sale 21 £4,576 - 38,095 -
439,783 94,648 249,139 59,231
TOTAL ASSETS 1,039,283 105,636 612,206 85715
Page 13

The annexad notes form an. integral part of these financial statements.



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 (CONT’D)

The Group The Company
30.9.2018 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
Note RM'000 RA D00 RM 000 RM'000
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 22 367,743 79,180 367,743 79,180
Reserves 23 213,950 9,074 195,283 5,524
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 581,693 88,254 563,026 84,704
Non-controlling interests 237 30 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 581,930 88,284 563,026 84,704
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Defined benefit obligation 24 1,297 1,104 87 68
Deferred tax liabilities 12 102,246 6 - -
Long-term borrowings 25 28,875 - 375 -
132,418 1.110 452 63
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 28 11,300 4,078 - -
Other payables and accruals 29 288,012 1,598 2,783 430
Progress billings 14 17,591 9,691 - -
Amount owing to subsidiaries 17 - - 45,462 410
Amount owing to related parties 18 3,568 103 50 103
Shart-term borrowings 30 2,614 - 114 -
Provision for taxation 1,651 772 309 -
324,736 16,242 43,718 943
Liabilities of digposal group
held for sale 21 199 - - -
324,935 16,242 48,718 943
TOTAL LIABILITIES 457,353 17,352 49,180 1,011
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,039,283 105,636 612,206 85715

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial staiements. Page 14



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT ORLOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4,2013 1.4.2014 142013
to o to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
Note RM'000 RM000 RM"000 RM'000
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE H 135,479 35,462 39,935 2,130
COST OF SALES (85,250) (27,075) - -
GROSS PROFIT 50,229 8,387 39,935 2,130
OTHER INCOME 24,873 267 1,152 -
75,102 8,654 41,087 2,130
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER
EXPENSES (55.709) {6,182) (40,348) (3,3686)
FINANCE COSTS (379) - (379) -
SHARE OF RESULTS IN AN
ASSOCIATE, NET OF TAX 4 25 - -
PROFITALOSS) BEFORE :
TAXATION 32 19,018 2,500 360 {1,238)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 33 (5.035) (723) (374) -
PROFIT/{LOSS) AFTER TAXATION
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 13,883 1,777 (14) (1,236)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS 34 1,145 1,790 - -
PROFITHLOSS) AFTER TAXATION 15,128 3,567 {14) (1,236)
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Page 15



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia}
Company No: 8235-K

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 (CONT”D}

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to to to
30.9.201%5 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
Note RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

ems that will not be reclassified

subseguently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined

benefit obligation - 165 - 163

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME/{EXPENSES) FOR THE

FINANCIAL PERICD/YEAR _ 15,128 3,732 (14} (1,073)

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER

TAXATION ATTRIBUTABLE TO:- ,

Owners of the Company 15,103 3,564 {14) {1,236)

Non-controlling interests 25 3 - -
15,128 3,567 (14) (1,236)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME/{EXPENSES)

ATIRIBUTABLE TO:-

Owners of the Company 15,103 3,729 (14) (1,073)

Non-controlling interests 25 3 - -
15,128 3,732 (14) (1,073)

EARNINGS PER SHARE (SEN) 35

Basic:

- continuing operations 6.01 1.29

- discontinued operations 0.49 1.30

Diluted:

- continuing operations NiA N/A

- discontinued operations N/A NIA

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. ~ Page 16
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 (CONT'D)

4——— Nop-distributable ——— Distributable

Share Share Wamant  Capital Accumulated Total
Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Losses Equity
Note RM000 RMODD RMO0OD  RM'00C0 RM000 RM000
The Company

Balance at 1.4.2013 65,180 13,296 - 1,800 (8,499) 71,777

Loss after taxation - - - - (1,236) {1,236}

Other comprehensive

incomne for the financial year

- Remeasurements of
defined benefit obligation - - - - 163 163

Total comprehensive expenses
for the financial year - - - - (1,073) {1,073)

Contributions by owners of
the Company.
- Issuance of shares ’ 14,000 - - - - 14,000

Balance at 31.3.2014/ .
1.4.2014 79,180 13,296 - 1,800 (9,572) 84,704

Loss after taxation/Total
- comprehensiva expenses for :
the financial period - - - - {14} (14)

Contributions by owners of
the Company:

- lssuance of shares

- reinvestment shares for
acquisition of a subsidiary 22, 23.1 51,020 48,980 - - - 100,000

- rights issue with free
warrants 22,231 237543 94,225 48,300 - - 380,068

- share issUaNce eXpenses
set off against share
premium 23.1 - (1,732} - - - (1,732)

Total transactions with owners: 288,563 141,473 48,300 - - 478,336

Balance at 30.8.2015 367,743 154,769 48,300 1,800 (9,586) 563,026

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Page 19



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incomporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to fo to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.8.2015 31.3.2014
Note  RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM000
CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/{l-oss) before taxation
-« continuing operations 19,018 2,500 360 (1,236)
- discontinued operations 1,311 2,360 “ -
20,329 4,860 360 (1,236)
Adjustment for:-
Bad debts written off 2 - - -
Depreciation of:
- property, plant and equipment 1,180 635 528 64
- investment properties 277 203 56 38
impairment loss on:
- net assets of disposal group held
for sale 15,684 - - -
~ goodwill 7 - - -
-~ investment in a subsidiary - - 15,026 -
Interest expense 378 - 378 -
Inventories written down 25 a7 - -
Property, plant and equipment
written off 3 - 3 -
Accretion of trade payables (450) - - -
Bad debts recoverad {88} - - -
Dividend income - - (15,123) -
(Gain on bargain purchase {22,007) - - -
Gain on disposal of:
- property, plant and equipment (115) - - -
- investment properties {454) - - -
Interest incame (1,352) {685) {1,165) (66)
Share of results in associates (662) (28) - -
Operating profiti{loss) before
working capital changes carried
forward 12,757 5,032 63 {1,200)
The annexed notes form an integral patt of these financial statements. Page 20



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 (CONTD)

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to {o to o
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
Note  RM000 RM'000 RMD0D RM'000
Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes brought
forward 12,757 5,032 63 {1,200)
Changes in working capital:-
increase in inventories (672) {181) - -
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and
other receivables 4,866 23,574 {522} (11)
Decrsase in property development
costs 18,287 7,193 - -
Increase in trade and other payables 16,547 3,742 2,352 274
increase in amount owing by
subsidlaries : - - (3,901} -
Increase in amount owing by
related parties (2,424) - (2,424) -
Increase in amount owing to
refated parties 881 - 50 -
Net increase in accrued billings (60,692) - - -
Increase in progress billings - 9,691 - -
Increase/{Decreasa) in defined
benefit obligation 193 (69) 19 19
CASH (FOR)FROM OPERATIONS (10,257) 48,982 (4,363) (918)
Interest paid (378) - {378) -
Real property gains tax paid (28} - - -
Income tax paid {(4,344) (734) {60) (4)
NET CASH (FOR)FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES {15,007) 48,248 (4,801) (922}
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financlal statements. Page 21



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 -K

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 (CONT’D)

: The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to to io
30.8.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
Note  RMD0D RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Advances to related parties (701) - (701) -
Advances to subsidiaries - - {126,747) (24,636)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of '
cash and cash equivalents
acquired 36 (204,548) - (79,123) -
Interest income received 1,338 685 1,162 66
Investment in an associate {1.548) - - -
Placement on fixed deposits
pledged to licensed banks (11,128} - (10,5986) -
Purchase of:
- development land and
development project - (42,000) - -
- property, plant and equipment 37 (5,910) (851} {2,458) {323)
Proceeds from disposal of:
- property, plant and equipment 141 - - -
- investment properties 2,380 - - -
Redemption of preference shares
in subsidiaries - - 7,770 40,000
Repayment frorn an associate 54 - - -
Subscription of preference shares
in subsidiaries - - (215,880) -
NET CASH (FORYFROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (220,219) (42,166) {426,583) 15,107

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Page 22



SUNSURIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
1.4.20t4 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to fo to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
Note  RM'000 RM'C00 RMO00 RM000
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from subsidiaries - - 45,052 -
Drawdown of term foan 31,000 - - -
Proceeds from issuance of
shares 380,068 - 380,068 -
Share issuance expenses (1,732) - (1,732) -
Repayment of hire purchase
obligations (110) - {110} -
(Repayment to)/Advances from
related parties (61,671) 103 {103) 103
Redempfion of redeemable
preference shares (68,390} - - -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 279,185 103 423,175 103
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 43,941 6,185 (8,209) 14,288
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE
FINANCIAL PERIOD/YEAR 33,499 27,314 15,770 1,482
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE FINANCIAL
PERIOD/YEAR 38 77,440 33,499 7.561 15,770

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Page 23



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public company limited by shares and is incorporated under the Companies Act
1965 in Malaysia. The domicile of the Company is Malaysia. The registered office and principal place
of business are as follows:-

Reyistered office . Level 8, Symphony House,
Pusat Dagangan Dana 1,
Jalan PJU 1A/46,
47301 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

Principal place of business + Suite 8, Main Tower, Sunsuria Avenue,
Parsiaran Mahogani,
Kota Damansara, PJU 5,
47810 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Diractors in accordance with a
resolution of the directors dated 15 January 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and the provision of
management services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note & to the
financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during
the financial period.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the hislorical cost convention and modified
to include other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under significant accounting policies,
and in compliance with Financial Reporting Standards (‘FRSs") and the requirements of the
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

Page 24



SUNSURIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

31 During the current financial period, the Group has adopted the following new accounting
standards and/or interpretations (including the consequential amendments, if any):-

FRSs andlor IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendments})
Amendments to FRS 10, FRS 12 and FRS 127 (2011): Investment Entities
Amendments to FRS 119: Defined Benefit Plans - Employee Contributions
Amendments to FRS 132: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to FRS 136: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets
Amendmerts to FRS 138: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
IC Interpretation 21 Levies

Annual Improvements to FRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to FRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above accounting standards andfor interpretations (in¢luding the
consequential amendments, if any) did not have any material impact on the Group's
financial statements.

3.2 The Group has not applied in advance the foliowing accounting standards and/or
interpretations (including the consequential amendments, if any) that have been issued by
the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB") but are not yet effective for the
current financial period: '

FRSs and/or IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Effective Date

Amendments)
FRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in July 2014) 1 January 2018
Amendments to FRS 10 and FRS 128 {2011): Sale or Contribution of

Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 1 January 2016
Amendments to FRS 11 : Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations ) 1 January 2016
Amendments to FRS 10, FRS 12 and FRS 128 (2011): Invesiment

Entities - Applying the Consolidation Exception 1 January 2016
Amendments to FRS 101: Presentation of Financial Statements -

Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
Amendments to FRS 116 and FRS 138: Clarification of Acceptable

Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 1 January 2016
Amendments to FRS 127 (2011): Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements 1 January 2016
Annual Impravements to FRSs 2012 - 201 4 Cycle 1 January 2016

The adoption of the above accounting standards and/or interpretations (including the
consequential amendments, if any) is expected to have no material impact on the financial
statements of the Group upon their initial application.

Page 25.



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

3,  BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTD)

3.3

MASB has issued a new MASB approved accounting framework, the Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards ("MFRSs”), that are 1o be applied by all entities other than private
entities: with the exception of entities that are within the scope of MFRS 141 {Agriculture)
and IC Interpretation 15 (Agreements for Construction of Reat Estate), including its parent,
significant investor and venturer (herein called “transitioning entities”).

As announced by MASB on 28 October 2015, the transitioning entities are aliowed to
defer the adoption of MFRSs to annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

‘Accordingly, as a transitioning entity as defined above, the Group has chosen to defer the
adoption of MFRSs and will only prepare its first set of MFRS financial statements for the
financial year ending 30 September 2018. The Group is currently agsessing the possible
financial impacts that may arise from the adoption of MFRSs and the process is still
ongoing.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

41

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and
are based on historical experience and other faciors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and judgements
that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures, and have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses are discussed below:-

{a) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges
for the property, plant and equipment are based on commercial factors which could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitors’ actions in
response 1o the market conditions. The Group anticipates that the residual values of
its property. plant and equipment will be insignificant. As a result, residual values are
not being taken into consideration for the computation of the depreciable amount.

. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact
the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future
depreciation charges could be revised.

(b) income Taxes

There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax

_ determination may be different from the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax
iabilities based on its understanding of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of
whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of business. Where the final
outcome of these matiers is different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such difference will impact the income tax and defemred tax provisions in the year in
which such determination is made. ’
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Company No: 8235-K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

41

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

{c)

(d)

(e}

h

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the
management is required to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to
determine the present value of those cash flows.

Write-down of Inventories

Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-
moving inventories. These reviews require judgement and estimates. Possible
changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the vaiuation of inventories,

Classification between Investment Propertles and Owner-occupied
Properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and
has developed a criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a property
held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a. property generates cash flows largely independent of the other
asseis held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to eam rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply .of

'goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sok

sepatately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment praperty only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis o determine whether angcillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as investment property.

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

An impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. Management specifically reviews its' loans and receivables
financial assets and analyses historical bad debts, customer concentrations,
customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in the customer
payment terms when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance
for impairment losses. Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and fiming of future cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for
assets with similar credit risk characteristics. if the expectation is different from the
estimation, such difference will impact the caying value of receivables.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(incorporated in Malaysia)

Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

41

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D}

(9)

(h}

()

@)

Classification of Leasehold Land

The classification of leasehold land as a finance lease or an operating lease requires
the use of judgement in determining the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
to its ownership lie. Despite the fact that there will be no transfer of ownership by the
end of the lease term and that the lease term does not constitute the major part of
the indefinite economic life of the land, management considered that the present
value of the minimum lease payments approximated to the fair value of the land at
the inception of the lease. Accordingly, management judged that the Group has
acquired substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the fand
through a finance lease. :

Property Development

The Group recognise property development revenue and expenses in the profit or
loss by using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is determined
by the proportion that the property development costs incurred for work performed to
date bear o the estimated total property development costs.

Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of
the property development costs incurred, the estimated total property development
revenue and costs, as well as the recoverability of the development projects. In
making the judgement, the Group evaluates based on past experience and by relying
on the work of specialisis.

Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impaimment annually and at other times when such indicators
exist. This requires management 1o estimate the expected future cash flows of the
cash-generating unit 1o which goodwill is allocated and to apply a suitable discount
rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows. The future cash
flows are most sensitive to budgeted gross margins, growth rates estimated and
discount rate used. If the expectation is different from the estimation, such difference
will impact the carying value of goodwill.

Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financlal Assets and Liabilities

The Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires
extensive use of accounting estimates and judgement. While significant components
of fair value measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence, the
amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group uses different valuation
methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these assets and liabilities would affect
profit and/or equity. '

Page 28



SUNSURIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

42

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to the end of the reporting period.

Subsidiaries are entities {including structured entities) controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable retums from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its power ove

the entity. .

Subsidiaries are consolidated from. the date on which control is transfemred to the Group up to
the effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate.

intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
Where necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure
consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, separately from the equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and
each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
non-controlling interests even i this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

At the end of each reporting periad, the carrying amouni of non-controlling interests is the
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of
subsequent changes in eguity.

All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity of the Group.

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group recognises any gain or loss on disposal in
profit or loss which is calculated as the difference between:-

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest in the former subsidiary, and

(i) - the previous camying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and Tabilities of the
former subsidiary and any non-controfiing interests.

Amounts previousiy recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or fransferred directly to retained
profits). The fair value of any investments retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under FRS 139 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture,
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company Ne: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

42

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONT'D)

Business combinations from_1 April 2011 onwards

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the
acquisition method, the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
value of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group at the acquisition date. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs, other than the costs to issue debt or equity securities, are recognised in profit or ioss
when incurred.

In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree
are remeasured 1o fair value at the acquisition date and any comesponding gain o loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-fransaction basis.

Business combinations before 1 April 2011

All subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase method. At the date of acquisition, the
fair values of the subsidiaries’ net assets are determined and these values are refiected in the
consolidated financial statements. The cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and
equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any
costs directly attributable to the business combination.

Non-controliing interests are initially measured at their share of the fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.3

4.4

GOODWILL

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impaiment losses, if any. The carrying value
of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the cammying amount may be impaired. The impairment value of
goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Business combinations from 1 April 2011 onwards

Under the acquisition method, any excess of the sum of the fair vaiue of the consideration
transforred in the business combination, the amount of non-controlling interests recognised
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition is
recorded as goodwill.

Where the latter amount exceeds the former, after reassessment, the excess represents a
bargain purchase gain and is recognised as a gain in profit or loss.

Business combinations before 1 April 2011

Under the purchase method, goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase
consideration over the Group's share of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the subsidiaries at the date of acquisition.

If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair values of the identifiable net assets of
the subsidiaries exceeds the cost of the business combinations, the excess is recognised as
income immediately in profit or loss.

FUNCTIONAL AND FOREIGN CURRENCIES
(a) Functional and Presentation Currency

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which is
the functional currency.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation cumency.

(b) Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are convered into the respective functional
currencies on initial recognition, using the exchange rates approximating those ruling
at the transaciion dates. Monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are translated at the rates ruling as of that date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the values were
determined. Al exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments are recognised in the statements of financial position when the Group
has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement. interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial
instrument classified as a liability, are reported as an expense or incoms. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity.

Financial instruments are offset when the Group'has a legally enforceabls right to offset and
intends to setfle either on a net basis or o realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument {(other than a
financial instrument at fair value through profit or Joss) are added to/deducted from the fair
value on initial recognition, as appropriate. Transaction costs on the financial instrument at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the
individual policy statement associated with each item,

(a) Financial Assets

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as either financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables financial assets, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate,

(i) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss when the financial asset is either held for trading or is
designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. Dividend income from this category of financial assets is recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Einancial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as
current or non-current. Financial assets that are held primarily for trading
purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets that are not
held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or non-current
hased on the setilement date.
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4.5 FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

(a) Financial Assets {Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

Held-to-maturity Invesiments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial agsets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less any impairment loss, with interest income recognised in profit
or loss on an effective yield basis

Held-to-maturity invesiments are classified as non-current assets, except
for those having maturity within 12 months after the reporting date which
are classified as cuirent assets.

L.oans and Receivables Financial Assets

Trade recelvables and other receivables that have fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as loans
and receivables financial assets. Loans and receivables financial assets
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment loss. Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Loans and receivables financial assets are classified as current assets,
except for those having settlement dates later than 12 menths after the
reporting date which are classified as non-current assets.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated in this category or are not classified in any of the other
categories.

After initial recognition, avaitable-for-sale financial assets are remeasured
to their fair values at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve, with the exception of
impaiment losses. On derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified from equity
into profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive payments is established.
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45 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

(a)

(b}

{c}

Financial Assets (Cont’d)
{(ivi  Available-for-sale Financial Assets (Cont'd)

Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets
unless they are expected to be realised within 12 months after the
reporting date.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method other than those categarised as fair value through profit
orloss.

Fair vaiue through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are
either held for trading or are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabifities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date.

Equity Instruments
Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for
appropriation.
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45

46

4.7

4.8

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
{d) Derecognition

A financial asset or patt of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is
transferred to another party without retaining control or substantialty all risks and
rewards of the asset. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On
derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished or fransferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets fransferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

WARRANTS

Amount allocated in relation to the issuance of wamants are credited to the warrant
reserve which is non-distributable. The warrant reserve is transferred to the share
premium account upon exercise of the warrants and the warmant reserve in relation to the
unexercised at the expiry of the warrants period will be transferred to retained earnings.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the
Company, and are reviewed for impaimment at the end of the reporting period if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. The
cost of the investments includes transaction costs.

On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity in which the Group and the Company have a long-term equity
interest and where it exercises significant influence over the financial and operating
policies.

investments in associates are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the
Company, and are reviewed for impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. The
cost of the investment includes fransaction costs.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.8

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D)

The investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated statement of financial
position using the equity method, based on the financial statements of the associate made
up to 30 September 2015, The Group’s share of the post acquisition profits and other
comprehensive income of the associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, after adjustment if any, to align the accounting
policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences up to
the effective date on which significant influence ceases or when the investment is
classified as heid for sale. The Group's interest in the associate is carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition retained profits and reserves. The cost of investment includes transaction
costs.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its inferest in an associate, the carrying
amount of that interest is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is
disconfinued except to the exient that the Group has an obligation.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless
cost cannot be recovered.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate and the retained
interest in the former associate is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value st that date and the fair value is regarded as the initial carrying
amount of the financial asset in accordance with FRS 139. Furthermore, the Group also
reclassifies its share of the gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income of that associate to profit or loss when the equity method is discontinued.
However, the Group will continue to use the equity method if the dilution does not resultin
a loss of significant influence or when an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. Under such changes in ownership interest, the retained
investment is not remeasured to fair value but a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income of the associate will be reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate. Al dilution gains or losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in profit or loss,
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4.9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged 1o profit or loss (unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset) on the straight-ine method to write off the depreciable amount of the
assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the
asset becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose are'-

Long-term leasehold land Over the lease period of 87 io 91 years
Buildings 2%
Plant and machinery 5% - 10%
Furniture, fittings and equipment 10% - 25%

Motor vehicles 20%
Spare parts and loose toois 20% to 100%
Renovation 20%
Signboard 20%

Initial purchases of spare parts and loose tools have been capitalised and depreciated at
annual rates ranging from 20% to 100%. Subsequent purchases of such items are
recognised in profit or 1oss.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted i
appropriate, at the end of each reporting peried to ensure that the amounts, method and
periods of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattem of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of the preperty and

equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount of recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asseti
can be measured reliably. The camying amount of pars that are replaced is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. Cost also comprises the initial estimate of dismantiing and removing the
asset and restoring the site on which it is located for which the Group is obligated to incur
when the asset is acquired, if applicable. :

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition
of the asset is recognised in profit or loss. :
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410

411

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held either to eam rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both. Invesiment properiies are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Frechold land is not depreciated. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the investment properiies. Leasehold land is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease terms of 88 to 94 years. Buildings are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 50 years.

investment properties are derecognised when they have either been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected
from its disposal.

On the derecognition of an investment property, the difference bstween the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. All
transfers do not change the carrying amount of the property reclagsified.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS
(a) Non-Current Property Development

Non-current propetty development costs consist of land and development costs
where no development activities are carried out or where development activities
are not expected 10 be completed within the normal operating cycle. Such land
and development costs are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Costs associated with the acquisition of land include the purchase price of the
land, professional fees, stamp duties, commissions, conversion fees and other
relevant levies. Pre-acquisition costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred
uniess such costs are directly identifiable to the consequent property development
activity.

Non-current property development costs are transferred to current asset when
development activities have commenced and where it can be demonstrated that
the development activities can be completed within the normal operating cycle.
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4.11

4.12

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (CONT D}

(b)

Current Property Development

Curmrent property development costs comprise costs associated with the
acquisition of land and all costs that are directly attributable to development
activities or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.

Properly development costs that are not recognised as an expense are
recognised as an asset and carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

When the financial outcome of a development activity can be reliably estimated,
the amount of property revenues and expenses recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income are determined by reference to the stage of completion of
development activity at the end of the reporting period.

When the financial outcome of a development activity cannot be reliably
estimated, the property development revenue is recognised only io the extent of
property development costs incurred that will be recoverable. The property
development costs on the development units sold are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

Where it is probable that property development costs will exceed propeity
development revenue, any expected loss is recognised as an expense in profit or
loss immediately, including costs to be incurred over the defects lability period.

PROGRESS BILLINGS/ACCRUED BILLINGS

in respect of progress billings:-

(i

(ii)

where revenue recognised in profit or loss exceeds the billings 1o purchasers, the
balance is shown as accrued billings under current assets; and

where billings to purchasers exceed the revenue recognised to profit or loss, the
balance is shown as progress billings under current liabilities.
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4.13

IMPAIRMENT

(@)

Impairment of Financial Assets

All financial assets {(other than those categorised at fair value through profit of
loss), are assessed at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events having an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the assel. For an equity instrument, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

An impairment loss in respect of held-to-maturity investments and loans and
receivables financial assets is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised
in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the fair value reserve. In addition, the cumulative
loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumtilated in equity under
fair value reserve, is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

With the exceplion of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in @ subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amertised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised. In respect of available-for-sale equity
instruments, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impaimment loss made is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Page 40



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia}
Company No: 8235 -K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

413

4.14

4.15

IMPAIRMENT (CONT'D)
(b) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying values of assets, other than those to which FRS 136 - Impairment of
Assets does noi apply, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for
impairment when there is an indication that the assets might be impaired.
impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the assets is the higher of the
assets’ fair value fess costs to selt and their value-in-use, which is measured by
reference to discounted future cash flow.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately uniess the asset is
carried at its revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated
as a revaluation decrease to the extent of a previously recognised revaluation
surplus for the same asset.

tn respect of assets other than goodwili, and when there is a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in
the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a reversal of the previous
impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the camying amount of the
asset that would have been determined (net of amortisation and depreciation} had
no impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is recognised in profit or loss
immediately, unless the asset is carried at its revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

ASSETS UNDER HIRE PURCHASE

Assets acquired under hire purchase are capitalised in the financial statements at the lower of
the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments
and, are depreciated in accordance with the policy set out in Note 4.9 above. Each hire
purchase payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges $0 as 1o achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. Finance charges are recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the respective hire purchase agreements,

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the
weighted average basis and comprises the purchase price, conversion costs and incidentals
incurred in bringing the inventories fo their present location and condition.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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4.16

INCOME TAXES
income tax for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit
for the reporting period and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. -

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
petween the tax bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than
those that arise from goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identfiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business
combination costs or from the initidl recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductibie temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits 1o the extent that it Is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised. The carrying amounts of deferred tax asseis are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred iax assets 1o be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the defemred income taxes
relate to the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions
sither in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a
business combination is included in the resulting goodwill or excess of the acquirer's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the business combination costs.
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4.18

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, bank
overdrafts and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value with
onginal maturity periods of three months or less.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is related to an entity (referred to as the “reporting entity”) if:-

(@)

A person or a close member of that person'’s family is related to a reporting entity if that
person:-

(i
(i)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the reporting entity,

has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

is & member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity.

An entity is related fo a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:-

M

(i)

(i)
(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group. (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is relsted to the
others).

One enity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a mermber).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the reporiing entity or an entity related o the reporting entity. If the
reporting entity is itself such a pian, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the reporting entity.

The entity is controlied or jointly controlled by a person identified in {a) above.

A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the entity oris a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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420

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past evenis and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. it can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of economic
resources wili be required or the amount of obligafion cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is
probabie, it will then be recognised as a provision.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. The
measurement assumes that the transaction takes place either in the principal market or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. For non-financial
asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market’s pariicipant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial reporting purposés. the fair value measurements are analysed inio level 1 to
level 3 as follows:-

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markeis for identical assets or
liability that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2. Inputs are Inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3:  Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

‘The transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. -
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421 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Short-term Benefits

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monéetary
benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Group's contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or
loss in the period to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the
Group has no further liability in respect of the defined contribution pians.

Defined Beonefit Plans

The Group operates an unfunded final salary defined benefit plan for thelr
employees. The liability in respect of the defined benefit plan is the present value
of the future benefiis that employees have eamed in retumn for their services
rendered in the current and prior periods. The calculation is performed using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out with
sufficient reqularity at an interval of not more than three years such that the
amounts recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from the
amounts that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Al
components of defined benefit costs are racognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except for remeasurements of the defined benefit
liability which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

422 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

(a)

(b)

Sale 'of Goods

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
is recognised upen delivery of goods and customers’ acceptance and where
applicable, net of returns and trade discounts.

Services

Revenue is recognised upon the rendering of services and when the outcome of
the transaction can be estimated refiably. In the event the outcome of the
transaction could not be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised to the extent of
the expenses incurred that are recoverabls,
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.22

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONT'D}

{c)

(d)

(e

0

Property Development

Revenue from property development is recognised from the sale of completed and
uncompleted development propetties.

Revenue from the sale of completed properties is recognised when the sale is
contracted.

Revenue on uncompleted properties contracted for sale is recognised based on the
stage of completion method unless the outcome of the development cannot be
reliably determined in which case the revenue on the development is only recognised
1o the extent of development costs incurred that are recoverable.

The stage of completion is detenmined based on the proportion that the development
costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total development
costs.

Foreseeable losses, if any, are provided in full as and when it can be reasonably
ascertained that the development will result in a loss.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the right to receive dividend
payment is established.

Rental Income

Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

423

424

425

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Non-current assets (or disposal group comprising assets and liabilities) that are expected
to be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use are classified as
held for sale. immediately before classification as held for sale, the non-current assets (or
the disposal group) are remeasured in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
Upon classification as held for sale, the non-current assets (the disposal group) are not
depreciated and are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell. Any differences are recognised in profit or loss.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business that represenis a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations that has been disposed
of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. When an operafion is
classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income is restated as if the operation had been discontinued from
the start of the comparative period.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities
from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating
segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are ready for their intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as expenses in the period in
which they incurred.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducied from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(incorporated in Malaysia)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Unguoted ordinary shares, at cost:-
At 1 April 2014/2013 19,124 19,124
Acquisition during the financial period/year (Note 36) 79123 -
Reclassification to non-current assat held for sale (Note 21) (53,121) -
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 45,126 19,124
Accumulated impairment losses:-
At 1 April 2014/2013 {18,081) {18,081)
Addition during the financial period/year (15,026) -
Reclassification to non-current asset held for sale (Note 21) 15,026 -
" At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 {18,081} {18,081)
27,045 1,043
Unquoted preference shares, at cost:-
At 1 April 201472013 25,800 65,800
Addition during the financial period/year 315,880 -
Redemption during the financial period/year (7,770) {40,000)
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 333,910 25,800
Accumulated impairment losses (3,300) (3,300)
330,610 22,500
Total 357,655 23,543
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(incorporated in Malaysia)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES {CONT’D)

Details of the subsidiaries, which are all incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:-

Effective
Equity Interest
Name of Subsidiary 30.9.2015 31.3.2014 Principal Activities
% %
Maica Wood Industries 99.78 99,78  Investment holding and
Sdn. Bhd., property investment,
Sunsuria North Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Investment holding and
(Formerly known as (“FKA") Consolidated property investment.
Leasing {M) Sdn. Bhd.) (“SNSB") ¥

Sunsuria Residence Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Froperty development.
(FKA Pinaremas Sdn. Bhd.)*
Ambang Arena Sdn. Bhd. * 100 100 Property development.
Havana Symphony Sdn. Bhd. 100 - Investment holding.
Sunsuria Facility Management Sdn. Bhd. 100 - Service management and
(FKA Makro Lumayan Sdn, Bhd.) investment holding.
Rentak Nusantara Sdn. Bhd. 98.01 - Property development.
Sunsuria Gateway Sdn. Bhd. 99.99 - Investment holding.
Concord Property Management Sdn. Bhd.® 100 - Investment holding.
Subsidiary of Havana Symphony Sdn. Bhd.
Sunsuria City 3dn. Bhd. 99.09 - Property development.
{FKA Sime Darby Sunsuria Development

Sdn. Bhd.) ("SCSB")

Subsidiary of SCSB

Library Mall Development Sdn. Bhd. 100 - Investment holding. The
(FKA Arrowstone Acres Sdn. Bhd.) * company has not

commenced its operations.

Subsidiary of Maica Wood Industries Sdn. Bhd.

Maicador Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Manufacturer of prefabricated

doors and door framas.
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5, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)
Effective
Equity Interest
Name of Subsidiary 30.9.2015 31.3.2014 Principal Activities
% %

Subsidiaries of SNSB

Consolidated Factoring (M) Sdn. Bhd. 91.89 91.89 Dormant.

Sunsuria Times Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Dormant.

(FKA Maritime Credits (Malaysia) Sdn.

Bhd.

Notes:-

# The subsidiary discontinued its financing business in January 2014 (Note 34).

#2 The subsidiaries commenced its property development business in January 2014.

" The subsidiary is classified as non-current asset held for sale in the financial period 30
September 2015 as disclosed in Note 21 1o the financial statements. An impairment loss
of RM15,026,000 is recognised in “Administrative and other expenses” line item of the
Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the financial period
ended 30 September 2015, arising from write-down of the carrying amount to its fair value
less costs to sell.

# This subsidiary was audited by other firms of chartered accountants.

(a) The statutory financial year end of Library Mall Development Sdn. Bhd. (FKA Arrowstone

(b)

Acres Sdn. Bhd.) is 31 August 2015 and it did not coincide with the Group financial year
end. The subsidiary is dormant and has been consolidated based on management
account for the 6-month period, from 31 March 2015 (date of incorporation) to 30
September 2015,

The summarised financial information (before intra-group elimination) of subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interests is not presented as the non-controling interests are not
material to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

6.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Unguoted shares in Malaysia, at cost

At 1 April 2014/2013

Acquisition during the financial
period/year {Note 36)

Reclassification 1o non-current asset
held for sate {Note 21)

At 30 Seplember 201531 March 2014

Share of post-acquisition profits

At 1 April 201472013

For the financial period/year

Reclassification to non-current asset
held for sale (Note 34)

At 30 Sepiember 2015/31 March 2014

Accumulated impairment losses

At 1 April 2014/2013

Addition during the financial period/
year

Reclassification to non-current asset
held for sale (Note 21)

At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM0O00 RM'00C RM'000

672 672 672 672
54,969 - - -
(54,969) - . .
672 672 672 672
570 a70 - -
662 - - -
(658) - . .
574 570 - -
(576) (576) (78) {78)
(15,684) - - -
15,684 - - -
(576) (576) (78) {(78)
670 666 594 594
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

6.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D)

The details of the associates are as follows:-

Country of Effective
Name of Associate Incorporation Equity Interest Principal Activities
30.9.2016 31.3.2014
% %
Mahakota Sdn. Bhd. ™ Malaysia 25.4 254  Woodworks manufacturer
' and dealer in fimber and
wood.
Cl Medini Sdn. Bhd. (FKA Malaysia 21.0 - Property development.

Sunsuria Medini Sdn. Bhd.) *

#1 The share of results in this associate is based on the unaudited financial statements of the
associate as the share of results is not material to the Group.

2  The associate is indirectly held by the Group threugh direct equity interest by SNSB of 1%
and Concord Property Management Sdn. Bhd. of 20%.

The associate was classified as non-current asset held for sale in the financial period 30
September 2015 as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial staternents.

(a) The summarised unaudited financial information for the associate is as follows:-

Mahakota Sdn. Bhd.

30.9.2015 31,3.2014
RM'000 RMO00

At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014
Non-current assets 4,441 4,591
Current asseis 5,946 5,824
Non-current liabilities - -
Current lizbilities (5,512) (5,524}
Net assets 4875 4,891
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

6. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)
(a) The summarised unaudited financial information for the associate is as follows (Cont'd):-

Mahakota Sdn. Bhd.

30.9.2015 31.3.2014
* RM'000 RM000
Financial year ended 30 September 2015/
31 March 2014
Revenue 11,796 7,824
Profit for the financial period/year 46 111
Total comprehensive income 48 111
Group's share of profit for the financial perlod/year 4 28
Group's share of other comprehensive income 4 28
Reconciliation of net assets to camying amount
Group’s share of net assets above 1,238 1,242
Goodwilt - -
Carrying amount of the Group's interests
in this associate 1,238 1,242
7. OTHER INVESTMENT
The Group
30.9.2015 34.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Investment in golf club membership 25 25

Investment in gold club membership of the Group are designated as available-for-sale financial
assets but are stated at cost as their fair values cannot be reliably measured using valuation
tachniques due to the lack of marketability of the investment.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {CONT’D)

The Group
Net book value

Long-temn leasehold land
Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fitlings and equipment
Motor vehicles

The Group
30.9.2015

Long-tem leasehold land
Buildings

Plant and machinery

Fumiture, fitings and equipment
Motor vehicles

Spare parts and loose tools
Rencvation

Signboard

31.3.2014

Long-term leasshold land
Buildings

Plant and machinery

Fumniture, fittings and equipment
Motor vehicles

Spare parts and loose {ools

At Depreciation At
1.4.2013 Additions Charge 31.3.2014
RMO00 RM000 RM000 RM'000
939 - {16} 923
1,220 - (49) 1,171
863 498 (402) 959
108 353 (54) 407
247 - (114) 133
3,377 351 (635) 3,593

Accumulated
At Accumulated  Impairment Net Book
Cost Depreciation Losses Value

RM'0Q0 RM'0DO RM'000 RM'000
1,409 (510) - 899
4,201 (1,408) - 2,793
16,701 (3,333) (1,035) 1,333
4,789 (2.129) - 2,660
1,381 (711) - 670

65 (65) - .
618 (71) - 547
40 (34) - 6
23,204 {13,261) (1,035) 8,908
1,409 (486) - 923
2,498 (1,327) - 1171
17,967 (15,607) (1.401) 959
3,183 {2,626) (150) 407
1,238 (1.105) - 133

65 (65) - -
26,360 (21,2186) (1,551) 3,593
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

The Company
Net book value

Buildings

Furniture, fittings and eguipment
Motor vehicles

Renovation

Net book value

Buildings
Furniture, fittings and equipment
Motor vehicles

The Company
30.9.2015

Buildings

Fumniture, fifiings and equipmeant
Motor vehicles

Renovation

31.3.2014

Buildings
Furniture, fittings and equipment
Motor vehicles

At Written  Depreciation At
1.4.2014  Additions Off Charge 30.9.2015
RM'C0O0 RM'C00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
178 - - {10) 168
300 2,087 {3) (314) 2,070
15 704 - {174) 545
- 267 - (30) 237
493 3,058 (3) (528) 3.020
At Writtenn  Depreciation At
1.4.2013  Addition Off Charge 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'0D0 RM'000 RM"000 RM'000
184 - - {6) 178
12 323 - (35) 300
38 - - (23) 15
234 323 - {64) 493

AL Accumulated Net Book

Cost Depraciation  Value

RMWM'000 RM'000 RM000
37 (149) 166
2,923 {853) 2,070
823 (278) 545
267 (30} 237
4,330 (1,310) 3,020
317 (139) 178
838 (538) 300
119 (104) 15
1,274 (781) 493
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D}

{a) Included in the net book value of the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company at the end of the reporting period are motor vehicles with a total net book value of
RM539,000 (31.3.2014 - Nil} acquired under hire purchase terms.

(b) The buildings of the Group and of the Company with a fotal net book value of RM168,000
(2014 - Nil) were pledged to a licensed bank as security for banking faciiities granted to

. the Group and the Company.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group
At cost-

At 1 April 2013
Addition during the financial year

At 31 March 201411 April 2014
Disposals during the financial period
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36)
Adjustments on land costs

At 30 September 2015

Accumulated depreciation:-

At 1 April 2013
Charge for the financial period

At 31 March 2014/1 April 2014
Charge for the financial period
Disposals during the financial pericd

At 30 September 2015

Net book value;-
At 31 March 2014

At 30 September 2015

Short-term Long-ierm
Freechoild Leasehold Leasehold
Land Land Land Buildings Total
RM'0OD RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
044 652 1,750 8,570 11.916
944 652 1,750 8,570 11,916
- - (1,750) {767) (2,517)
71,515 - - - 71,515
(1.238) - - - (1.238)
71,221 652 - 7.803 79,676
- 338 329 4,342 5,009
- 11 21 171 203
- 349 350 4,513 5212
- 16 15 246 277
- - (3685) (226) (591
- 365 - 4,533 4,808
944 303 1,400 4,057 6,704
71,221 287 - 3,270 74,778
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9.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Long-ferm
Freechold Leasehold
Land Land Buildings Total
RM’000 RMWM000 RM000 RM000

The Company
At cost-
At 1 April 2013 504 873 1,402 2,869
Addition during the financial year - - - -
At 31 March 2014/1 April 2014 594 873 1,402 2,869
Addition during the financial year - - - -
At 30 September 2015 594 873 1,402 2,869
Accumuiated depreciation:-
At1 Aprit 2013 - - 290 687 977
Charge for the financial period - 10 28 38
At 31 March 2014/1 April 2014 - 300 715 1,015
Charge for the financial period - 16 41 56
At 30 September 2015 - 315 756 1,071
Net book value:-
At 31 March 2014 594 573 687 1,854
At 30 September 2015 594 - 558 646 1,798

B

The adjustiments were made on land area due to water retention and open area which is in
excess of the respective agreed 5% and 10% of each plot area respectively as provided
under the respective Sale and Purchase Agreements.

The land area has further been adjusted for land to be designated and surrendered to
authority for purpose of school and town park.

The adjusted land areas were in fine with the Master Layout Plan dated 14 January 2015
issued by Majlis Perbandaran Sepang which now formed the basis of computation of the
final purchase consideration under the respective supplementary agreements dated 20
Juna 2015.
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9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)

(a) The net book value of certain properties have been pledged to a licensed bank as secunty
for banking facilities granted to the Group and the Company as disclosed in Note 27 to the
financial statements. Details are as follows:-

The Group The Company
30.8.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'C00 RM'COC RM'000
Freehold land 944 - 594 -
Buildings 722 - 646 -
1,666 - 1,240 -

{b) The fair value of investment properties are analysed as follows:-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Freehold land - 6,717 3,185 4,260 2,085

Short-term leasehold land 4,886 5,000 - -
Long-term leasehold land 4,600 1,472 4.600 5,800
Buildings 6,194 7,918 2,160 2,955
92,397 17,575 11,020 10,840

The fair values of investment properties were measured based on appraisals performed by
independent professional valuers using the market comparison approach. The appraised
values were derived from obsetvable prices per square foot for comparable properties in
similar locations (ie. Level 2).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

10. GOODWILL

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000

At cost:-

At 1 April 2014/2013 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) 6.776 -
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 6,776 -
Accumulated impairment losses:-

At 1 April 2014/2013 - -
Addition during the financial period (N -
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 {7} -
Carrying amount 6,769 -

{a) The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each cash-generating unit is as follows:-

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Property Development
- Rentak Nusantara Sdn. Bhd. 6,769 -

(b) The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill allocated and determined
that no additional impairment is required. The recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units is determined using the value-in-use approach, and this is derived from the present
value of the future cash flows from the operating segments computed based on the
projections of financial budgets approved by management covering a period of 5 years.
The key assumptions used in the determination of the recoverable amount are as follows:-

(i) Budgeted gross margin @ The budgeted gross margin range from 15% o 19%,
determined based on historical achieved margins and
assumes no significant changes in cost structure or

input prices.

{ii} Growth rate - Based on .the expected projection of the sales
generated from the Suria Hills project.

(iii) Discount rate (pre-tax)  : The discount rate used is 5.5% per annum, compuied
based on the weighted average cost of capital of the
Company.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

10. GOODWILL (CONTD)
{c) Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
The management believes that no reasonably possible changes in any of the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying value of the goodwill fo be materially higher than its
recoverable amount.
{d) An impairment loss amounting to RM7,000 was recognised in profit or loss for goodwill

arose from the acquisition of Library Mall Development Sdn. Bhd. (FKA Arrowstone Acres
Sdn. Bhd.}.

11.  LAND HELD FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
Freehoid land, at cost:- RM'000 RM'O00
At 1 Aprit 2014/2013 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries Q#Note 6) 517,039 -
Adjustments on land costs (8,950) -

At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 508,089 -

* Please refer to Note 9 to the financial staterents for the explanation on the adjustments on

land costs.

12. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/(LIABILITIES)

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
At 1 April 2014/2013 (6) (6)
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 33) 261 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) {102,240) -
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 (101,985) (6)
Presented as follows:-
Deferred tax asset 261 -
Deferred tax liabilities (102,246) (6)
(101,985) (6)
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12.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET/(LIABILITIES) (CONT'D)

The deferred tax asset and liabilities are attributable to the following items:-

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Deferred tax asset:-
Temporary difference on property development costs 261 -
Deferred tax liabilities:-
Accelerated of capital allowance over depreciation of:
- property, plant and equipment {4) (4)
- investment properties (2) (2)
Fair value of the identifiable assets acquired as part of
the acquisition of Sunsuria Gateway Sdn. Bhd. (102,240) -
(102,246) (6)
(101,985) (6)

No deferred tax assets are recognised in the statements of financial position on the following items:-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM00D0 RM000 RM'000 RM'0G0
Deductible temporary
differences of:
- defined benefit obligation 1,298 1,104 87 _ 68
- inventories 84 59 - -
- provision for costs - 88 - -
- allowance for impairment
loss - 2,490 - -
Unabsorbed capital allowances 15,108 15,434 553 553
Unutilised tax losses 44,351 41,315 245 245
Accelerated capital allowances
over depreciation {2,759) (2,147} (823) (82)
58,082 58,343 62 784
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
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13. INVENTORIES

At cost:-

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Consumables
Goods-in-transit

Recognised in profit or loss:-

inventories recognised as cost of sales
Inventories written down

MNone of inventories is carried at net realisable value.

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
2,699 2,128
1,654 1,427

388 171
189 203
- 356
4,930 4,285
13,565 8,417
25 47
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14. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
At 1 April 2014/2013
- land 56,000 -
- development costs 6,304 -
62,304 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36):
- land 179,642 -
- development costs 12,962 -
192,604 -
Cost incurred during the financial year. )
- land - 56,000
- deveiopment cosis 51,845 6,303
51,845 62.303
Adjustments on land costs: *
- land ' {2,168) -
- development costs - -
(2,168) -
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014
- land 233,474 56,000
- development costs 71,111 6,304
304,585 62,304
Costs recognised in profit or loss:-
Cumutative costs recognised at 1 April 2014/2013 (13,497) -
Costs recognised during the financial period/year (67,965) (13,497)
Cumulative costs recognised at 30 September 2015/
31 March 2014 (81,462) (13,497)
Property development costs at 30 September 2015/
31 March 2014 223,123 48,807

# The details for the adjustments on land costs are disclosed in Note @ to the financial

statements.
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14. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS (CONT’D)

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM000 RMO00
Cumulative revenue recognised in profit or loss 156,438 18,394
Less; Cumulative billings to purchasers (123,953) (28,085)
Accrued billings/(Progress billings) 32,485 {9,691}
The net accrued billings/(progress billings) are represented by:-
Accrued billings 50,076 -
Progress billings {17,591) {9,691)
32,485 (9,691)

(a) The tand under development of the Group with a carrying amount of RM38,840,000
(31.3.2014 - Nil) has been pledged to a licensed bank for banking facilities granted to the

Group as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements.

{b) Included in development expenditure is interest expense capitalised during the financial

period amounting to RM284,000 (31.3.2014 - Nif}.

{c) The title deeds pertaining to certain freehold land of the Group amounted to
RM31,000,000 registered in the name of its related party and these title deeds will be

transferred directly to the purchasers upon handover of the com pleted units.
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group

30.8.2015 31.3.2014

RM000 RM'000

Trade receivables 13,618 7,732
Allowance for impairment losses (%) (147)
13,607 7,585

Allowance for impairment losses:-

At 1 April 2014/2013 (147) (212)
Written off during the financial period/year 138 65
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 (9) {147)

The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 14 to 90 (31 .3.2014 - 14 {0 90) days.

16. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
Cther receivables 674 47 152 13
Deposits 627 231 312 a9
Prepayments 437 108 112 2
1,738 386 576 54

17. AMOUNTS OWING BY/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

The Company
30.2.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM000
Amount owing by:
- Trade 3,901 -
- Non-trade 170,149 43,402
174,050 43,402
Amount owing to:
- Non-trade (45,462) (410)
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17.  AMOUNTS OWING BY/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

The trade and non-trade balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
amounis owing are to be settled by cash.

18. AMOUNTS OWING BY/(TO) RELATED PARTIES

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM'C00 RM'000
Amount owing by:
- Trade 2,424 - 2,424 -
- Non-trade 714 - 714 -
| 3,138 - 3,138 :
Amount owing to:
- Trade (881) - (50) -
- Non-trade (2,687) (103) - (103)
(3,568) (103) (50) {103)

The trade balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, The amounts owing are
to be settled in cash.

The non-trade balance represents shareholders advances from the Company to Cl Medini Sdn. Bhd.
(FKA Sunsuria Medini Sdn. Bhd.), an associate of the Group. The amount owing at the end of the
reporting period bore interest of 5.87% (31.3.2014 - Nil) per annum. The amount owing is unsecured
and repayable on demand. The amount owing is to be settled in cash.

Included in amount owing to related parties (trade balance) is a retention sum amounting to
RM831,000 which is unsecured, interest-free and is expected to be paid upon expiry of the defect
fliability period in the financial year ending 30 September 2016.

Related parties refer to companies substantially owned by a director of the Company.

18.  FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS

The fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group and of the Company at the end of the reporting
pericd bore effective interest rates ranging from 2.9% to 3.15% (31.3.2014 - 2.5% to 3.30%) per
annum. The fixed deposits have maturity periods ranging from 1 to 12 months (31.3.2014 - 1 to 12
months).
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19.

20.

21.

FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS (CONT’D)

Fixed deposits pledged with licensed banks are as follows:-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'00C RM'000 RM'C0C RM'000
Fixed deposits pledged

with licensed banks 11,128 ' - 10,596 -

Fixed deposits amounting to RM10,596,000 were pledged to licensed banks as security for
revolving credit facilities granted to the Company and an amount of RM532,000 is in relation to the
term loan facility granted to a subsidiary as disclosed in Note 27 to the finandial statements.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group is an amount of RM1,318,000 (31.3.2014 —
Nil) maintained under the Housing Development Accounts pursuant to Section 7A of the Housing
Development {Controf and Licensing) Act 1966 which is restricted from use in other operations.

DISPOSAL GROUP/NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

Concord Property Management Sdn. Bhd. (“Concord’) and its associate Cl Medini Sdn. Bhd. (FKA
Sunsuria Medini Sdn. Bhd.) (“CIMSB”), which were part of the invesiment holding and others segment
are presented as disposal group held for sale foliowing the event mentioned below.

Pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement dated 21 November 2014 and Deed of Accession dated
12 June 2015 between the shareholders of CIMSB, the Company is entitled to a Put Option to
require the other shareholder of CIMSB, Creed Investments Pte Lid to purchase all ordinary
shares of RM1.00 each in CIMSB, currently held by the Group (indirect interest through its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Concord and SNSB with total shareholdings of 21% in CIMSB) at a purchase
price of RM147.94 per CIMSB Share (“the Put Option”).

In view that the current market condition is uncertain, the Company's Board of Directors had on 17
September 2015 agreed to execute the Put Option which is effective from the period 1 April 2016 to
30 September 2016.

At the end of the current reporting period, the assets and liabilities of Concord and CIMSB have
been presented in the consolidated statements of financial position as “Assets of disposal group
held for sale” and ‘Liabiliies of disposal group held for sale”. Accordingly, the Company’s
investment in Concord has also been presented as “Non-current asset held for sale” in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

The disposal is expected to be completed not later than 15 September 2016.
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21. DISPOSAL GROUP/NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE (CONT'D)

The assets and liabilities of the disposal group, measured at the lower of their carrying amounts
and fair values less costs to sell, are as follows:-

The Group The Company
30.8.2015 30.9.2015
RM'000 RM'000

Assets
Investment in a subsidiary - 38,095
Investment in an associate 39,943 -
Amount owing by an associate 14,633 -
Cash in hand * -
Assets of disposal group/Non-current asset held for sale 54,576 38,095
Llabilities
Other payables and accruals 33 -
Provision for taxation 166 -
Liabilities of disposal group held for sale 199 -
Note:-

* - Represents RM2

As the estimated fair value less costs to sell is lower than the carrying amount of the disposal
group, the Group and the Company recognised an impairment loss on the ra-measurement to fair
value less costs to sell of RM15,684,000 and RM15,026,000 (31.3.2014 - Nil) as disciosed in
MNotes 5 and 6 to the financial staterments.

The impairment loss is recognised in “Administrative and other expenses” line item of the
Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the financial period ended 30
September 2015.
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22,

SHARE CAPITAL
The movements in the authorised and paid-up share capital of the Company are as follows:-
The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.8.2015 31.3.2014
Number0CD RMGOC
Ordinary shares of RM0.50 eachi-
Authorised
At 1 April 2014/2013 200,000 200,000 100,000 100,000
Creation of shares 1,300,000 - 650,000 -
At 30 September 2015/
31 March 2014 1,500,000 200,000 750,000 100,000
lssued And Fully Paid-up
At 1 April 2014/2013 158,361 - 130,361 79,180 65,180
Issuance of shares pursuant to;
- reinvestment shares for
acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 36) 102,040 - 51,020 -
- rights issue with free warrants 475,086 - 237,543 -
- acquisition of development land
and development project - 28,000 - 14,000
577,126 28,000 288,563 14,000
At 30 September 2015/
31 March 2014 735,487 158,361 367,743 79,180
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22,

23.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D)
Dusing the financial period:-

(a) the Company increased its authorised share capital from RM100,000,000 to RM750,000,000
by the creation of 1,300,000,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each;

(b) the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM79,180,736 to
RM367,743,352 by:-

(i) the issuance of 102,040,816 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each at an issue
price of RM0.98 per share for the purpose of acquisition of a subsidiary as disclosed in
Note 36 to the financial siatements; and

(ii) the issuance of a renounceable rights issue of 475,084,416 new ordinary shares of
RM0.50 each ("Rights Shares”} at an issue price of RM0.80 per Rights Share on the
basis of 3 Rights Shares for every 1 existing ordinary share held together with
158,361,472 new free detachable warrants ("Warrants®) on the basis of 1 free Warrant
for every 3 Rights Shares subscribed for (“Rights Issue™).

The new ordinary shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the
Company; and

(c) The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitied 1o receive dividends as
and when declared by the Company, and are entitied to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company.

RESERVES

The Group The Company
Note 30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RMOC0

Share premium 231 154,769 13,296 154,769 13,296

Warrant reserve 232 48,300 - 48,300 -

Capiial reserve 233 815 8§15 1,800 1,800

Capital redemption reserve 234 168 - - -

Retained profits/

(Accumulated losses) 9,898 (5,037) (9,586) (9.572)

213,950 9,074 195,263 5,524
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23. RESERVES (CONT'D)

2341  SHAREPREMIUM

The movements in the share premium of the Group and the Company are as follows:-

The Group/The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000

At 1 April 2014/2013 13,296 13,296
Issuance of ordinary shares pursuant to
- reinvestment shares for acquisition of a subsidiary 48,980 -
- rights issue with free warants 94,225 -
Share issuance expenses {1,732) -
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 154,769 13,296

The share premium is not distributable by way of dividends and may be utilised in the
manner set out in Section 60(3) of the Companies Act 1965.

232  WARRANT RESERVE

The Group/The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
At 1 April 201412013 - -
Created during the financial period 48,300 -
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 48,300 -

The warrant reserve arose from the allocation of the proceeds received from the
renounceable rights issue of 475,084,416 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each together
with 158,361,472 free detachable warrants during the financial period.

The reserve is determined by reference to the fair value of the warrants of RM0.305 each
amounting to RM48,300,000 immediately upon the listing and quotation of the rights issue on
the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 27 July 2015.

Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe for 1 new ordinary share of RM1.00 each in
the Company at the exercise price of RM1.50. The warranis are exercisable over a period

of 5 years and will be expiring on 22 July 2020. None of the warrants in issue was
exercised during the financial period.

23.3 CAPITAL RESERVE

Capital reserves arose from the profit on disposal of investment in a subsidiary.
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23. RESERVES (CONT'D)
234  CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
At 1 April 2014/2013 - -
Redemption of redeemable preference shares 168 -
At 30 September 2015/31 March 2014 168 -

The capital redemption reserve arose from the redemption of preference shares out of
profits which would otherwise have been available for dividend. A sum equal to the
nominal amount of the shares redeemed was transferred 1o the capital redemption reserve
in accordance with the requirement of Section 61 of the Companies Act 1965.

The transfer to capital redemption reserve was made out of the retained profits.

24, DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

The Group The Company
30.2.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 April 2014/2013 1,104 1,338 68 212
Defined benefits costs 198 {166) 19 {144}
Payrnents {8) (68) “ -
At 30 September 2015/
31 March 2014 1,297 1,104 87 68
Being present value of defined
obligation disclosed as
non-current liabilities 1,297 1,104 87 68
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24.  DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (CONT'D)

The components of defined benefit costs are as follows:-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM000
Recognised in profit or loss
Current service cost 104 65 13 9
Past service cost - {135) - (1)
Interest expense 94 69 6 11
1908 {1 19 19
Recognised in other
comprehensive income
Remeasurements arising
from experience adjustments - (165) - {163)
At 30 September 2015/
31 March 2014 198 (166) 19 (144)

The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit
obligation are as follows:-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
% % % %
Discount rate -5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50
Future salary growih 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation fo changes in
each principal actuarial assumption that was reasonably possible at the end of the reporting
period, with all other variables held constant:-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 : RM'000

Discount rate:
- increase by 1% (105) {1086) (9) (8)
- decrease by 1% 119 121 10 9
Future salary growth:
- increase by 1% 61 50 12 10
- decrease by 1% (55) (46) (10) {9)

As at 30 September 2015, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was
10.8 years (31.3.2014 - 10.8 years).
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25. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Hire purchase payables (Note 26) 375 - 375 -
Term loan (Note 27) 28,500 - - -
28,875 - 375 -
26, HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLES
The Group/The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Minimum hire purchase payments :
- not later than one year 135 -
- later than one year and not later than five years 403 -
538 -
Less; Future finance charges {49) -
Present value of hire purchase payables 489 -
Current (Note 30):
Not later than one year 114 -
Non-current (Note 25);
Later than one year and not later than five years 375 -
489 -

The hire purchase payabies of the Group and of the Company bore effective interest rates ranging
from 4.64% to 4.81% (31.3.2014 - Nil) per annum at the end of reporting period.
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27. TERMLOAN

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Current (Note 30Y:
Not later than one year 2,500 -
Non-current (Note 25):
Later than one year and not later than two years 9,000 -
Later than two years and not later than five years 19,500 -
28,500 -
31,000 -

(a) The term loan bore an effective interest rate of 5.15% (31.3.2014 - Nil) per annum at the
end of the reporting period and is secured by:-

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(v)

(v)

a facility agreement;

a legal charge over 33 plots of bungalow land iocaled at Jalan Setia Perdana
1J13/28C, Bandar Setia Alam, Seksyen U13, Shah Alam, Selangor under Mukim
Bukit Raja, Daerah Petaling, Selangor of a subsidiary as disclosed in Note 14 to
the financial statements (“Property A”);

pledged of fixed deposits amounting to RM532,000 as disclosed in Note 1 to the
financial statements,

a joint and several guarantee from a director of the Company and a related party
for RM32,845,000 together with interest; and

a specific debenture with a fixed and floating charge over Property A for all
monies owing or payable.

Page 76



SUNSURIA BERHAD
(incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

27,

TERM LOAN (CONT'D)

(b)

{c)

Reduction
date

30.06.2016
30.09.2016
31.12.2016
31.03.2017
30.06.2017
30.09.2017
31122017
31.03.2018
30.06.2018
30.09.2018
31.12.2018

Amount
RM'000

1,000
1,500
1,500
2,000
2,500
3,000
3,500
3,500
3,500
4,000
5,000

31,000

The significant covenants of the term loan are as follows:-

The term loan is repayable over a period of 5 years and the repayment term of the term
loan is by redemption of individual units or via a reduction schedule, whichever is earlier.
Below are the reduction schedule:-

(i) the subsidiary shall maintain a minimum security cover as outlined in letter of offer;

{ii) the subsidiary shall maintain a Debt Service Reserve Account for the purpose of
maintaining a debt service amount. The minimum balance to be maintained shall

be RM500,000 for the entire tenure of the term loan.

The Group has complied with all the requirements of the covenants as at 30 September

2015.
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28,

TRADE PAYABLES
The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM’000
Trade payables 8,474 3,529
Retaniion sum payables 2,826 549
11,300 4,078

The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 14 to 90 days (31.3.2014 - 14 10 90
days).

The retention sums are unsecured, interest-free and are expected to be paid upon expiry of the
defect liability period, ranging from the financial years ending 2016 to 2019.

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUALS

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM000 RM'CQ0 RM'000 RM'O00
Other payables 20,911 673 205 69
Deposits received 1,033 146 3 -
Accruals 258,181 779 2,575 361
Advances received from the
purchasers 6,887 - - .
288,012 1,598 2,783 430

ncluded in accruals is an amount of RM246,676,000 (31.3.2014 - Nil) in respect of accrnued
rernaining purchase consideration for the purchase of nine (9) parcels of development land
totalling 331.27 acres from Sime Darby Serenia Development Sdn. Bhd. (FKA Sime Darby Ampar
Tenang Development Sdn. Bhd.).

The accrued amount has been set-off against the adjustments on land costs of RM1,238,000,
RM8,950,000 and RM2,168,000 as disclosed in Notes 9, 11 and 14 to the financial statements.
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36.

31.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Hire purchase payables (Note 26) 114 - 114 -
Term loan (Note 27) 2,500 - - -
2,614 - 114 -
REVENUE
The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4,2013
to to to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'O0Q RM'000 RM000 RM'O00
Continuing operations:-
Sale of goods 25,316 18,382 - -
Services rendered 17 - - 712
Property development
activities 95,158 18,384 - -
Management fee 13,921 - 18,747 -
Dividend income - - 20,961 1,200
interest income - 66 - 66
Rental income 1,067 620 227 162
135,479 35,462 39,935 2,130
Discontinued operations
{Note 34):-
Interest income - 2,582 - -
Rental income - 36 - -
- 2,618 - -
135,479 38,080 35,935 2,130
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32,

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit/(Loss) hefore taxation from
continuing operations is arrived
at after charging/{crediting):-

Auditors’ remuneration
- for the financial periodiyear
- underprovision in tha previous

year

Bad debts written off

Depreciation of:

- property, piant and
equipment

- investment properties

Direct operaiing expenses on

investment properties

Directors’ fee

Directors' non-fae emoluments

Preliminary expenses

Impairment loss o

- net assets of disposal
group held for sale

- goodwill

-investment in a subsidiary

Interest expense on;

- revolving credit

- hire purchase

Inventories written down

Property, plant and

equipment written off

Rental expense:

- motor vehicles

- premises

- office equipment

- show room

Staff costs:

- salaries, overtime, bonus,
allowances and other benefits

- defined coniribution plan

- defined benefit plan

The Group
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
163 82
34 -
2 -
1,180 569
277 198
78 479
265 37
5,681 609
5 -
15,684 -
7
352 -
26 -
25 47
3 -
369 20
2,102 83
19 -
85 -
17,136 6,284
1,672 518
198 (1)

The Company
1.42014 1.4.2013
to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM000 RM‘OOQ

51 38
528 64
56 38
24 48
265 a7
5,681 609
15,026 -
352 -
26 -
3 -
369 20
1,491 83
8 -
6,858 2,001
601 185
19 19
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32.  PROFIT/LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.8.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'O00 RM'000

Accretion of trade payables (450) . - -
Bad debts recovered {88) - - -
Dividend income from :

investments in subsidiaties - - {(20,961) (1,200)
Gain on bargain purchase (22,007) - - -
Gain on disposal of:

- property, plant and equipment {(115) - - -

- investment properties {454) - - -
interest income: .

- cash and cash equivalents (1,325) (249) (1,152) (66)
- others (14) - ) -

- amount owing by an associate (13) - {13) -
Realised gain on foreign

exchange (5) (10) - -
Rental income (1,452) (656) (226) (152)
Share of results in associates (4) (28} - -

The estimated monetary value of benefits-in-kind recelved by the directors other than in cash from the
Group and the Company amounted to RM48,000 (31.3.2014 - Nil}.
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33.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Continuing operations:

Current tax:

- for the financial period/year
- overprovision in the previous
-financial ysar

Deferred tax {(Note 12):

- relating to originating and
recognition of temporary
differences

Real property gains tax

Total income tax expense
attributable to continuing
operations

Discontinued operations
{(Note 34):

Current tax:

- for the financial pericd/year

- overprovision in the previous
financial year

Total income tax expense
attributable to discontinued
operations

Total

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to fo E(a ) to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000D RM'000 RM000 RM'000
5,306 723 374 -

(38) - - -
5,268 723 374 -
(261) - - -
28 - - -
5,035 723 374 -
166 590 - -
- (20) - -
166 570
5,201 1,293 374 -
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33. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit/{loss) before taxation at the statutory tax
rate to income tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:-

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
je] to to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM 000 RM'000 RM'000
Profit{Loss) before taxation:
- continuing operations 19,018 2,500 360 {1,236)
- discontinued operations 1,311 2,360 - -
20,329 4,860 360 (1,236}
Tax at the statutory fax rate
of 25% {2014 - 25%) 5,082 1,215 90 (309)
Tax effects of:-
Non-taxable income {5,813) - {5.240) {300)
MNon-deductible expenses 6,049 690 5,705 501
Share of results in associates (1) {n - -

Deferred {ax assets not

recognised during the

financial period/year 1,407 18 - 18
Utilisation of deferred tax

assets previously not

recognised (1,473) (603) {181) -
Utilisation of industrial

building allowances (40) - - -
Real property gains tax 28 - - -
Overprovision of current tax

in the previous financial year (38) (20) - -

Income tax expense for the
financial period/year 5,201 1,293 374 -

The statutory tax rate will be reduced to 24% from the current financial year's rate of 25%, effective
year of assessment 2016,
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33. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)

Tax savings during the financial period/year arising from:-

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to o to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.8.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM000
Utilisation of industrial building
aliowances
- current year 175 58 - -
Utllisation of tax losses
- previously not recognised 263 - - -

34. PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

At 30 September 2015

As disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements, the Group is agreeable to execute the Put
Option to sell all ordinary shares of RM1.00 each currently held by the Group in CIMSB to Creed
Investments Pte Ltd, which is effective from period 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2016. The
disposal is expected 0 be completed not later than 15 September 2016,

At 31 March 2014

A subsidiary, SNSB, was previously engaged in the business of leasing and hire purchase financing.
In order to streamline the Group’s operations, the directors decided to discontinue the subsidiary’s
financing business in January 2014.
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34.

An analysis of the results of the discontinued operations s as follows:-

Revenue

Other income

Administrative expenses

Share of result in an associate, net of tax
Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit after taxation from discontinued operations

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT'D)

Inctuded in profit before taxation from discontinued operations are the following:-

Audit fee

Depreciation of:

- property, plant and equiprment

- investment properties

Direct operating expenses on investment properties
Directors’ non-fee emoluments

Bad debts recovered

Rental income from investment properties
Interest income:

- hire purchase financing

- cash and cash equivalents

- amount owing by an associate

The Group
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
o to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM000 RM'000
- 2618
658 1
658 2619
(5) (259)
658 -
1,311 2,360
{166) (570)
1,145 1,790
The Group
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
L {s) fo
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
2 11
- 66
- 5
- 4
- 16
- (1)
- (36)
- (2,146)
- (436)
{658) -
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34. PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT'D)

) The cash flows attributable to the discontinued operations are as follows:-

The Group
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM 000 RM'000
Net cash from operating activities - 32,051
Net cash from investing activities - 436
Net cash for financing activities - (44,012)
Net cash for discontinued operations - {11,625)
35. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
(a) Basic eamings per ordinary share
The Group
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
Continuing operations
Profit after taxation attributable to owners of the
Company (RM’000) 13,958 1,778
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(‘000):-
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 2014/2012 158,361 130,361
Effect of new ordinary shares issued pursuant to:-
- reinvestment shares for acquisition of a
subsidiary 13,035 -
- rights issue with free warrants 60,686 -
- acquisition of development land and
development project - 7,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at
30 September 2015/31 March 2014 (*000) 232,082 137,361
Basic earnings per ordinary share (Sen) 6.01 1.29
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35. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE (CONT'D)

(@) Basic earnings per ordinary share (Cont'd)

The Group
1.4,2014 1.4.2013
to to
30.8.2015 31.3.2014
Discontinued operations
Profit after taxation attributable to owners of the
Company (RM'000) 1,145 1,789
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at
30 September 2015/31March 2014 {'000) (as above) 232,082 137,361
Basic eamings per ordinary share (Sen) 049 1.30

(b} Diluted earnings per share

In the current financial period, the diluted eamings per share for the Group is not
presented as the warrants would be anti-dilutive as the exercise price is higher than the
fair value of the Company's share.

In the previous financial year, the diluted eamings per share equals the basic earnings per
share as the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the

financial year.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235-K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

36.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

The fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and fabilities assumed of the abovementioned
subsidiaries at the date of acquisition were as follows:-

At Date Of Acquisition

Carrying Fair Value

Amount Recognised

RM000 RM000
investment in a jointly controlled entity : * *
Investment in an associate 250 53,121
Property, plant and equipment 14 14
Land held for future development 208473 517,039
Property development cost 122,342 192,604
Investment properties : 28,835 71,515
Trade recsivables 6,789 6,789
Other receivables 5,364 5,364
Arnount owing by an associate 14,687 14,687
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 4,026 4,026
Cash and bank balances 1,549 1,549
Trade payables (368) {368)
Other payables and accruals (287,391) (287.391)
Amount due to related parties (64,255) (64.255)
Deferred tax liabilities - {102,240)
Provision for taxation (14) {14)
Redeemable preference shares (16,839) (168,390)
Progress billings (18,516} (18,516)
Net identifiable assets 4,946 225534
Less: Non-controlling interests - (182)
Add: Goodwill on consolidation 6,776
Less: Gain on bargain purchase (22,007)
Total purchase consideration 210,121
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries acquired (5,575)
Net cash outflow for acquisition of subsidiaries 204,546

P

* - Represents RM1

The non-controlling interests are measured at the non-controiling interests’ proportionate sh_are of
the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.
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36.

37.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

The acquired subsidiaries have contributed the following results fo the Group:-

The Group
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
fo to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Continuing operations
Revenue 6,335 -
Profit after taxation 5449 -
Discontinued operations
Revenue - -
Profit after taxation 1,145 -

If the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the financial period, the Group’s revenue and
profit after taxation from continuing operations would have been as follows:-

The Group
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to o
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Continuing operations
Revenue 171,106 -
Profit after taxation 6,679 -
Discontinued operations
Revenue - -
Profit after taxation 16,062 -
PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Cost of property, plant and
equipment purchased 6,510 851 3,058 323
Amount financed through
hire purchase (600) - (600) -
Cash disbursed for purchase
of property, plant and
equipment 5,910 851 2,458 323
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38. CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comptise the

following:-
The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.8.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM 000 RM'000 RM'000
Fixed deposits with licensed
hanks 11,128 21,5090 10,596 12,347
Cash and bank balances 77,440 11,290 7,561 3,423
88,568 33,499 18,157 15,770
Less: Deposits pledged to
licensed banks {(Note 19) {11,128) - (10,596) -
77,440 33,499 7,561 15,770

39. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(a) The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and receivable by the directors of the
Group and the Company during the financial period/year are as follows:-

The Group/The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Directors Of The Company
Executive directors:
- fee - 11
- non-fee emoluments 5,561 609
5,561 620
Non-Executive directors:
- fae 265 26
- non-fee emoluments 120 -
385 26
5,946 646
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39, DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT'D)

(h) The estimated monetary value of benefits-in-kind provided fo the directors of the Group
and the Company during the financial periodfyear are as follows:-

The Group/The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Executive directors 46 -
Non-executive direcliors 3 -

49 -

(c) The number of the Company’s directors with total remuneration falling in bands of
RM50,000 are as follows:-

The Group/The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
o to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
Number Of Directors
Executive directors:-
Below RM50,000 - 1
RM50,001 - RM100,000 - 1
RM100,001 - RM150,000 - 1
RM400,001 - RM450,000 # 1
RM1,250,001 - RM1,300,000 1 -
RM3,750,001 - RM3,850,000 1 -
Non-Executive directors:-
Below RM50,000 1 5
RM50.001 - RM100,000 3 -
RM100,001 - RM150,000 # -
7 9

# - A director of the Company held the position of executive director from 1 April 2014
to 20 January 2015, and was redesignated as a non-executive director from 21
January 2015 to 30 September 2015.
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40.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@)

(b)

Identities of related parties

In addition to the information detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group has
related party relationships with its directors, key management personnel and entities within

the same group of companies.

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the
Company also carried out the following significant fransactions with the related parties during

the financial periodfyear:-

Subsidiaries

‘Advances from

Advances to
Assignment of debts
- from related parties to the
Company
- from subsidiaries to the
Company by another
subsidiaries
Dividend received/receivable
Management fee
received/receivable
Payment on behalf of
Redemptlion of redeemable
non-convertible non-
cumulative preference
share by subsidiaries
Rental of premises
income receivedfreceivable
Rental of premises
expenses paid/payable
Subseription of redeemable
preference shares

Associates

Interest income
receivedfreceivable
Novation of debts pursuant
to acquisition of CIMSB

A director
Redemption of redeemable
preference shares

The Group
1.4.2014

to

30.9.2015

RM'C00

&7
754

168,390

The Company

1.4.2014

to

30.8.2015
RMO00

76,325
25,919

85,462

2,908
20,961

4,825
166,771

7,770

45

315,880

13

754

1.4.2013

to

31.3.2014
RM 000

1,200
742

40,000

30
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40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D}

(b)

()

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the
Company also carried out the following significant transactions with the related parties during
the financial periodfyear (Cont'd):-

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to to {o
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
KRM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Companies substantially
owned by a director and
his close family member
Advances from 5,772 - - -
Advances to 223 - -
Assignment of debls from
related parties to the
Company 65,462 - 65,462 -
Construction cost
paid/payable 6,439 - - -
Granting of hire purchase
financing:
- principal financed - 14,851 - -
- principal repaid - 45,773 - -
- interest charged and
repaid - 2,148 - -
Management fee received/
receivable 13,921 - 13,921 -
Management fee paid/
payable 4,500 - - -
Payment on behalf by 3,678 - 47 -
Payment on behalf of 9,553 - 9,553 -
Rental of premises paid/
payable 1,491 83 1,491 83
Rental of motor vehicles
paidipayable 369 20 369 20

" Being a company in which a former director/substantial shareholder of the

Company and his close family members has substantial financial interests.

Key management personnel compensation (exclude directors’ remuneration):-

The Group The Company
1.4.2014 1.4.2013 1.4.2014 142013
to to to to
30.8.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM 000 RM’000 RM'000
Shori-term employee
benefits 3,680 81 2,712 .
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41,

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating segments are prepared in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided {o
the Group Executive Commiitee as its chief operating decision maker in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. For management purposes, the Group is
organised into business units based on their products and services provided.

The Group is organised inte 4 main business segments as follows:-

(i) Manufacturing
- manufacture of wood products

{ii) Property development
- undertakes the development of commercial and residential properties.

(ifi) investment holding and others
- investment activities and provision of management services,

(iv) Granting of finansing
- engaged in the business of leasing and hire purchase financing. The Group has
discontinued the financing business in January 2014.

Group financing (including finance costs) and income taxes are managed on a group basis and are
not allocated to operating segments.

Assets, liabilities and expenses which are common and cannot be meaningfully allocated to the
operating segments are presented under unalflocated items. Unallocated items comprise mainly
investments and related income, loans and borrowings and related expenses, corporate assets
(primarily the Company's headquarters) and head office expenses.

Transfer prices between operating segments are at am’s length basis in a manner similar to
{fransactions with third parties.
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41.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

30.9.2015

Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Consolidation adjustments and
elimination

Consolidated revenue

Resuits

Continuing operations:

Results before following adjustments

Consolidation adjustments and
eliminations

Interest income
Other material items of income {Note a)
Depreciation of:
- property, plant and equipment
- investment properties
Other material items of expenses
(Note b)

Segment resulis from continuing
operations

Finance cosis
Share of results in associates
Income tax expense

Consolidated profit after taxation from
continuing operations

Investment
Property holding
Manufacturing development and others Total
RM'00D RM'00C RM'000 RM'000
25,316 97,607 15,005 137,928
- - 26,001 26,001
25,316 97,607 41,006 163,929
(28,450}
135,479
1,618 14,997 16,238 32,853
825 5,259 (27,184) (21,110}
2,443 20,256 (10,956) 11,743
62 107 1,170 1,339
340 - 23,119 23,459
(438) (195) (547) {1,180)
- - (277) (277)
- - (15,691) (15,691)
2,407 20,168 (3,182) 19,393
(379)
4
(5,035)
13,883
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41. OPERATING SEGMENTS {(CONT'D)

Investment
Property holding
Manufacturing development and others Total

30.9.2015 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
Discontinued operations:
Resuits before following adjustments - (5} {5)
Consolidation adjustments and
eliminations - - -

- (5) (®)
Interest income - 658 658

- 653 653
Share of results in associate 658
Income tax expense (166}
Consolidated profit after taxation from
discontinued operation 1,145
Assels
Segment assets 873,763 100,035 983,749
Investment in associates 670
Deferred tax asset 261
Tax refundable 27
Disposal group held for sale 54,576
Consolidated total assets 1,039,283
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41. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

Investment
FProperty holding
Manufacturing development and others Total

30.9.2015 RM'000 RM'O00 RM'000 RM'000
Liahilities

Segment liabilities 3,102 421,205 {71,050) 353,257
Deferred tax liabilities 102,246
Provision for taxation 1,651
Disposal group held for sale 189
Consolidated total liabilities 457,353
Other Segment ltems

Additions to non-cumrent assets other

than financial instruments:

- property, plant and equipment 812 976 4,722 6,510
Adjustments on land costs

- investment properties - (1,238} - (1,238)
- land held for property development - (8,950) - (8,950)
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41,

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

31.3.2014

Revenu
External revenue

Inter-segment revente

Consolidation adjustments
and eliminations

Consolidated revenue

Resuits

Results before following
adjustments
Consolidation adjustments
and elimination

Interest income

Other material items of

income (Note a)

Depreciation of:

- property, plant and
equipment

« investment properties

Segment results

Share of results in associates
Income tax expense

Consolidated profit after
taxation

Granting Unallocated
of financing noKN-
Property (discontinued operating
Manufacturing development operations)  segments Total
RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'Q00 RM’000
16,880 18,394 2,146 189 37,609
- . - 1,942 1,942
16,880 18,394 2,146 2,131 30,551
(1.470)
38,081
1,282 3,732 1,838 {1,332) 5,520
150 472 120 (1,833) (1,191)
1,432 4,204 1,958 (3,265) 4,329
87 96 436 66 685
498 - 36 122 656
(170) - (5) (28) (203)
(505) - {66) (64) (635)
1,342 4,300 2,359 (3,169} 4,832
28
(1,293)
3,667
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41. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

Granting  Unallocated
of financing hon-
Proparty  (discontinued operating
Manufaciuring development operations)  segments

31.3.2014 RMO00 RM'000 RM'C00 RM'000
Assets
Segment assels 17,547 60,700 9,039 17,598

Total
RM'000

104,884

invesiment in an associale
Tax refundable

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 2,732 13,130 111 601

666
86

105,636

16,574

Deferred tax liabilities
Provision for taxation

Consolidated total fiabilities

Other Segments [tems
Additions to non-current
assets other than financial
instruments:-
- property, plant and
equipment 528 - - 323

6
772

17,352

851
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

41. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

(a) Other material items of income congist of the following:-

The Group
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to
30.8.2015 31.3.2014
RMWCO00 RM’C00
Rental income 1,452 656
Gain on bargain purchase 22,007 -
23,459 656
(b) Other material items of expenses consist of the following:-
The Group
1.4.2014 1.4.2013
to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RMO00 RM'000
impairment loss on:
- net assets of disposal group held for sale 15,684 -
- goodwill 7 -
15,691 -

Page 101



SUNSURIA BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

41. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)
.. Geographical Segments

Information about geographical location of segment assets has not been reporied separately as
the Group operates principally within Malaysia. Segment revenue based on geographical location
of customers is analysed as follows:-

The Group
1.4.2014 1.42013
to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000C RMCGO0 -
Malaysia 131,276 35,818
United States of America 4,123 2,233
Others 80 29
135,479 38,080

Major Customers
The major customers that contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue are as follows:-

External Revenue

1.4.2014 142013
to to
3092015 31.3.2014
RM000 RM'000 Operating Segment

Customer A 21,005 14,049 Manufacturing
Customer B - 2,146 Granting of financing

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group
1.4,2014 1.4.2013
to to
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Property development costs:
- share of capital commitment of an associate 22,738 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

43.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In the previous financial year, the Company entered into financial guarantee contracts to provide
financial guarantees to financial institutions for credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries up to
a total limit of RM1,300,000. The total utilisation of these credit facilities as at 31 March 2014
amounted to RM565,000.

The aforementioned financial guarantee contracts should have been recognised in the statements
of financial position in accordance with the recognition and measurement policies as stated in Note
4.5(b). After considering that the probability of the subsidiaries defaulting on the credit lines is
remote, the financial guarantee contracts have not been recognised as the fair values on initial
recognition are nat expected o be material.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s activities are exposed fo a variety of market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall financial
risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

441  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Group's policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity ara as follows:-

{a} Market Risk
(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and balances
that are denominated in cumrencies other than Ringgit Malaysia. The
cumencies giving rise to this risk are primarly United States Dollar and
Singapore Dollar. Foreign currency risk is monitored closely on an ongoing
basis to ensure that the net exposure is at an acceptable level.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency is as follows:-

The Group
30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000
Trade payables
United States Doliar 18 374
Singapore Dollar 1 .

Foreign cumency risk sensitivity analysis

A 5% (31.3.2014 - 5%) strengthening/weakening of the RM against the
United States Dollar and Singapore Dollar at the end of the reporting
petiod would have immaterial impact on profit after taxation. This
assumes that all other variables remain constant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

44,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

441 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D}

(a) Market Risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate fisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s exposure 10 interest rate risk arises mainly from
interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s policy is to
obtain the most favourable interest rates available. Any surplus funds of
the Group will be placed with licensed financial institutions to generate
interest income.

information relating to the Group's exposure to the interest rate risk of the
financial iabilities is disclosed in Note 44.1(c} to the financial statements.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Group’s significant interest-bearing financial
instruments based on the carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting
period were:-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM000

Fixed rate

instruments

Fixed deposits

with licensed

banks 11,128 21,509 10,596 12,347
Hire purchase

payables 489 - 489 -

11,617 21,509 11,085 12,347

Floating rate
instruments
Term loan 31,000 - - -
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Company No: 8235 - K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£OR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

44,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

444  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)

(@)

(0}

Market Risk (Cont’d)

)

(iii)

Interest Rate Risk {(Cont'd)
Inferest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The interest rate risk sensitivity analysis on the fixed rate instruments are
not disclosed as these financial instruments is measured at amortised
cost.

The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible
change in the interest rates at the end of the reporting period, with all
other variables held constant.-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 3092015 31.3.2014
RM 000 RM'CO0 RM'000 RM'000

Effects on profit

after taxation/

equity
Increase of 100

basis points {233) - - -
Decrease of 100

basis points 233 - - -

Equity Price Risk

The Company does not have any quoted investments and hence is not
exposed to equity price risk.

Credit Risk

The Group's exposure 10 credit risk, or the risk of counterpariies defaulting, arises
mainly from trade and other receivables. The Group manages its exposure to
credit risk by the application of credit approvals, credit fimits and monitoring
procedures on an ongoing basis. For other financial assets (including quoted
investments, cash and bank balances and derivatives), the Group minimises
credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Company No: 8235-K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

44.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {CONT'D)

{b)

Credit Risk {Cont’d)

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of
incurred losses in respect of the trade and other receivables as appropriate. The
main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates 1o
individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for
agroups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet
identified. Impairment is estimated by management based on prior experience and
the current economic environment.

(i Credit risk concentration profile

The Group’s major concentration of credit risk relates to the amounts
owing by 4 customers which constituted approximately 64% of its trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Exposure to credit risk

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposute 1o
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets at
the end of the reporting period.

The Group does not have exposure to international credit risks as the
entire trade receivable are concentrated in Malaysia.

{iii) Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (including amount
owing by related parties) at the end of the reporting period is as follows:-

Gross individual  Collective  Carrying
Amount Impairment Impairment  Value

The Group RM'000 RM 000 RM000 RM'000

30.9.2015

Not past due 7,803 - - 7.803

Past due:

- 1 to 30 days 172 - - 172

- 3110120 days 1,253 - - 1,253

- more than 121 days 6,803 - - 6,803
16,031 - - 16,031
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44,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
441  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)

(b) Credit Risk {Cont'd}
(i} Ageing analysis (Contd)

Gross Individual Collective  Carrying
Amount  Impairment Impaiment  Value

The Group RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
31.3.2014

Not past due 120 - - 120
Past due:

- % to 30 days 2,735 - - 2,735

- 3110 120 days 2,026 - - 2,026

- more than 121 days 2,704 - - 2,704

7,585 - - 7,585

At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables that are individually
impaired were those in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted
on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or
credit enhancement.

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these trade receivables. They are substantially companies with good
collection track record and no recent history of defautt.

Property development seament

The Group believes that na impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these trade receivables, due to the following reasons:-

{i) the transfer of the properly to the purchaser is subject to the full
payment of the outstanding amount;

(it) most of the purchasers have end financing arrangements, and
payments are slow because of the credit processes of the end
financiers; and

(i) in the event the sale is terminated for non-payment, the Group will
be able to recover the property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {(CONT'D)
441  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)

{b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)
(i) Ageing analysis (Cont'd}
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

A significant portion of trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired are regular customers that have been transacting with the Group.
The Groups uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the trade
receivables. Any receivables having significant balances past due or more
than 30 days, which are deemed to have higher credit risk, are monitored
individuaily.

(¢)  Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises malnly from general funding and business activities. The
Group practises prudent risk management by maintaining sufficient cash balances
and the availability of funding through certain commitied credit facilities.

The following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted cash fliows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on the
rates at the end of the reporting period):-
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Company No: 8235 -K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

44,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

441
(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)

Liquidity Risk {Cont’d})
Contractual
Effective Carrying Undiscounted Within 1-5 Over
Rate Amount CashFlows 1Year Years b5 Years
The Company % RM'000 RM0CO RM0OO0 RM000 RNM000
30.9.2015
Other payables
and accruals - 2,783 2,783 2,783 - -
Amount owing io
subsidiaries - 45,462 45,462 45,462 - -
Amount owing to
related parties - 50 50 50 - -
Hire purchase
payables 464-481 489 538 135 403 -
48,784 48,833 48,430 403 -
31.3.2014
Other payables and
accruals - 430 430 430 - -
Amount owing to a
subsidiary - 410 410 410 - -
Amount owing to a
related party - 103 103 103 - -
943 943 943 - -
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

44.2

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages ifs capital based on debt-to-equity ratio. As the Group has significant
borrowings but a relative small equity base, the debt-to-equity ratio may not provide a
meaningful indicator of the risk of borrowings.

The Company manages its capital based on debt-to-equity ratio. The Company’s sirategies
were unchanged from the previous financial year. The debi-to-equity ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as interest-bearing borrowings less ¢ash
and cash equivalents.

There was no change in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial
period.

The debt-to-equity ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting period is not presented as
its cash and cash equivalents exceeded the total interest-bearing borrowings.

Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note No. 17/2005, the Company is
required to mainiain a consolidated shareholders’ equity (total equity attributable to
owners of the Company) equal to or not less than the 25% of the issued and paid-up
share capital {excluding treasury shares) and such shareholders’ equity is not less than
RM40 million. The Company has complied with this requirement.

The Group is also required to comply with certain loan covenants as disclosed in Note 27
to the financial statements, failing which, the banks may call an event of default. The
Group has complied with this requirement.
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44,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

443 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Financlal Assets
Available-for-sale financial
asset
Other Investment, at cost 25 25 - -
Loans and receivables
financial assets
Trade receivables 13,607 7,585 - -
Other receivables and
deposits 1,301 278 464 52
Amount owing by subsidiaries - - 174,050 43,402
Amount owing by related
parties 3,138 - 3,138 -
Dividend receivable - - 15,123 -
Fixed deposits with licensed
banks 11,128 21,509 10,596 12,347
Cash and bank balances 77.440 11,890 7,561 3,423
106,614 41,362 210,832 59,224
Financial Liabilitles
Other financial liabilities
Trade payables 11,300 4,078 - -
Other payables and accruals 288,012 1,598 2,783 430
Amount owing to subsidiaries - - 45,462 410
Amount owing to related
parties 3,568 103 50 103
Hire purchase payables 489 - 439 -
Tem loans 31,000 - - -
334,368 5,779 48,784 943
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No: 8235-K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

44.4

FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONTD)

The fair values above are for disclosure purposes and have been determined using the
following basis:-

(a) The fair values of hire purchase payables and term loans are determined by
discounting the relevant cash flows using interest rates for similar instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The interest rates used to discount the estimated cash
flows are as follows:-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
% % % %
Financial Liabllities
Hire purchase payables 4.64 -4.81 - 4,64 - 4.81 -
Term loan 515 - - -
(b) In regard to financial instruments carried at fair value, there were no transfer

between level 1 and level 2 during the financial year.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL PERIOD

The significant events during the financial period are as follows:-

{a)

(b)

(c)

On 11 April 2014, the Company acquired the entire equity interest of Sunsuria Facility
Management Sdn. Bhd. (FKA Makro Lumayan Sdn. Bhd.) (“SFM") for a total cash
consideration of RM2.,

On 12 May 2014, the Company obtained shareholders’ approval for the Private Placement of
up to 63,344,588 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each, representing approximately 10% of
the enlarged issued and paid up share capital of the Company (‘Private Placement’).
Subsequently, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad had, vide its letters dated 2 October 2014, 2
April 2015 and 22 October 2015, approved extensions of time of 8 months until 10 April 2016
for the Company to complete the implementation of the Private Placement.

On 13 August 2014, Sunsuria North Sdn. Bhd. (FKA Consolidated Leasing (M) Sdn. Bhd.)
(“SNSB"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the entire equity interest of
Havana Symphony Sdn. Bhd. ("HSSB”), comprising 2 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each for
a total cash consideration of RM2.

Page 117



SUNSURIA BERHAD
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45.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL PERIOD (CONT'D)

d

(e)

f

On 19 May 2015, the Company acquired the entire equity interest of HSSB from its whoily-
owned subsidiary, SNSB for a total cash consideration of RM2,

in consequent thereof, HSSB became a direct subsidiary of the Company.

On 20 May 2015, the Company subscribed for an additional 998 new ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each in HSSB for a total cash consideration of RM298,

On 42 June 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of the Sunsuria Gateway Sdn.
Bhd. (“SGSB”), Concord Property Management Sdn. Bhd. (“Concord”) and Rentak
Nusantara Sdn. Bhd. (“RNSB”} and an associate through the following agreements:-

(i) a conditional subscription agreement with SGSB, Datuk Ter Leong Yap (“Datuk
Ter) and Datin Kwan May Yuen (*Datin Kwan"} (being the existing sharsholders
of SGSB) for the subscription of 1,000,000 new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
in SGSB, representing a 99.99% equity interest in SGSB, at a cash subscription
price of RM1,000,000 and the subscription of 237,000,000 redeemable preference
shares-class B of RM0.01 each in SGSB, at a subscription price of
RM237,000,000.

(i) a conditional share purchase agreement with Datuk Ter and Ter Hong Khim @
Tai Foong Chin for the acquisition of 2 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in
Concord, representing 100% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Concord,
for a cash consideration of RM53,121,296.30;

{iii) a conditional share purchase agreement with THK Capitat Sdn. Bhd. for the
acquisition of 12,500 ordinary shares in Cl Medini Sdn. Bhd. (FKA Sunsuria
Medini Sdn Bhd (“CIMSB”), representing 1% of the issued and paid-up share
capital of CIMSB, for a cash consideration of RM1,848,389.97; and

The Company has nominated SNSB as the nominated transferee pursuant to the
terms of the share purchase agreement.

(iv) a conditional subscription agreement with RNSB and Sunsuria Development Sdn
Bhd (being the existing shareholder of RNSB) for the subscription of 25,000,000
new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in RNSB, representing a 99.01% equity
interest in SGSB for a cash subscription price of RM25,000,000 and the
subscription of 32,000,000 new redeemable preference shares of RM0.01 each in
RNSB for a cash subscription price of RM32,000,000.

Accordingly, SGSB, Concord and RNSB are now subsidiaries of the Company whilst
CIMSB is an associate of the Company.
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45.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL PERIOD (CONT'D)

(9)

()

(i}

@)

(k)

On 29 June 2015, the Company acquired 1 ordinary share of RM1.00 each in Sunsuria
City Sdn. Bhd (FKA Sime Darby Sunsuria Development Sdn Bhd) (*SCSB') from Sime
Darby Property (Sungai Kapar) Sdn. Bhd., representing 50% of the issued and paid-up
share capital of SCSB, for a total consideration of RM157,000,000. With the acquisition,
SCSB became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Company has nominated HSSB as the nominated transferee pursuant to the terms of
the share purchase agreement.

On 2 July 2015, the Company subscribed for an additional 998 new ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each in SFM for a total cash consideration of RM998.

On 27 July 2015, the renotunceable rights issue of 475,084,416 new ordinary shares of
RM0.50 each in the Company (*Rights Shares™) at an issue price of RM0.80 per Rights
Shares on the basis of 3 Rights Shares for every 1 existing ordinary share held together
with 158,361,472 free detachable warrants (“Warmrants”) on the basis of 1 Warrant for
every 3 Rights Shares subscribed for were completed following the listing and quotation of
475,084,416 Rights Shares together with 158,361,472 Warrants on the Main Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Pursuant fo the subscription in SGSB (as detailed in Note 45(f)(i) herein), there is a
proposed subscription by Datuk Ter Leong Yap (“Datuk Ter") for 102,040,816 new
ordinary shares at an issue price of RM0.98 per ordinary share of RMO.50 each
(“Reinvestment Shares”) (“Proposed Reinvestment’). The Proposed Reinvestment was
completed following the listing and quotation of the 102,040,818 Reinvestment Shares on
the Main Market of Bursa Securities on 27 July 2015.

The subscription price for the Reinvestment Shares will be used to set-off against the
redemption sum payable under the redemption of the 10,000,000 existing redeemable
preference shares-class A of RM0.01 par value each in SGSB (“SGSB RPS-A") currently
held by Datuk Ter (“RPS-A Redemption”), which represents part of the existing SGSB
RPS-A outstanding. This set-off does not have any cash flow impact in the Statements of
Cash Flows.

On 19 August 2015, SCSB, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the entire
equity interest in Library Mall Development Sdn. Bhd. (FKA Arrowstone Acres Sdn. Bhd.)
{“Library Mall Development”), comprising 2 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each from Yap Kian
Mun and Lim Boon Huay for a total consideration of RMZ2.

Consequently, Library Mall Development became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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45,

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL PERIOD (CONT'D)

{1}

(m)

(n)

(o)

r)

{a)

On 11 August 2015, the Company received a notice from Maicador Sdn. Bhd.
{(*Maicador”), an indirect 99.78% owned subsidiary, informing the Company of its intention
to redeem 3,180,000 Redeemable Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Preference Shares
(“RNCNCPS”") of RM0.01 each in the share capital of Maicador Sdn. Bhd. at a cash
consideration of RM1.00 per share.

The Company had on 14 September 2015 accepted the aforesaid redemption and has
executed the letter of acceptance of redemption from Maicador.

On 11 August 2015, the Company received a notice from Maica Wood Industries (M) Sdn.
Bhd. ("Maica Wood"), a 99.78% owned subsidiary, informing the Company of its intention
to redeem 4,590,000 RNCNCPS of RM0.01 each in the share capital of Maica Wood at a
cash consideration of RM1.00 per share.

The Company had on 14 September 2015 accepted the aforesaid redemption and has
executed the letter of acceptance of redemption from Maica Wood.

On 14 September 2015, the Company subscribed for 1,270,530 RNCNCPS of RMO.01
each with a premium of RM0.99 each in the share capital of Sunsuria Times Sdn. Bhd.
(FKA Maritime Credits (M) Sdn. Bhd.) (“STSB"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company for a total cash consideration of RM1,270,530 in satisfaction of the amount
owing by STSB to the Company.

On 14 September 2015, the Company subscribed for 45,600,180 RNCNCPS of RMO0.01
each with a premium of RM0.99 each in the share capital of Sunsuria Residence Sdn.
Bhd. (FKA Pinaremas Sdn. Bhd.) ("SRSB"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company for
a total cash consideration of RM45,609,180 in satisfaction of the amount owing by SRSB
to the Company.

On 17 September 2015, the Company's Board of Direciors agreed to execute the Put
Option which is effective from the period 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2016. The target
completion is not later than 15 September 2018.

Please refer to Note 21 to the financial statements for further details.

On 28 September 2015, the Company received a notice from Maicador, an indirect
09.78% owned subsidiary, informing the Company of its intention to redeem 5,820,000
RNCNCPS of RM0.01 each in the share capital at a cash consideration of RM1.00 per
share.

The Company had on 30 October 2015 accepled the aforesaid redemption and has
executed the letter of acceptance of redemption from Maicador.
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46. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The significant events occurring after the reporting period are as follows:-

(a) On 1 October 2015, the Company transferred 100 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in
Maica Wood, a 99.78% owned subsidiary to SNSB for a total cash consideration of
RM100.

{s)] On 9 October 2015, SGSB, $9.99% owned subsidiary subscribed for an additional
124,299 new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in SCSB for a total cash consideration of
RM124,999,

(c) On 9 October 2015, Havana Sympheny Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company subscribed for an additional 124,999 new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in
SCSB for a total cash consideration of RM124,999.

(d) On 18 October 2015, Maica Wood, a 99.78% owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a Lease Purchase Agreement with Always Ahead (M) Sdn. Bhd: (third party) for the
disposal of a piece of leasehold land held under H.S.{M) 7859 Ploi 23, Bandar Kufim,
Daerah Kulim, Negeri Kedah for a total cash consideration of RM8,600,000.

A deposit of RM860,000 representing 10% of the disposal consideration (included 3%
RPGT retention sum) has been received from Always Ahead (M) Sdn. Bhd. as at the date
of this report.

{e) On 29 October 2015, the Company entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with
Maicador, an indirect 99.78% owned subsidiary for the purchase of a piece of industrial
leasehold land held under Pajakan Negeri No. 212, Lot No. 1772, Seksyen 3, Bandar
Butterworth, Daerah Seberang Perai Utara, Pulau Pinang together with storage premises
inclusive of all buildings and amenities erected therein for a totat cash consideration of
RM3,300,000.
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47.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Company has changed its financial year end from 31 March to 30 September. Accordingly, the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial period ended 30 September
2015 cover an 18-month period from 1 April 2014 to 30 September 2016 as compared to the 12-
month period from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014.

The following figures have been reclassified to conform with the presentation of the current financial
period:-

The Group The Company
As
As Previously As Previously
Restated Reported Restated Reported
RM'000 RM'O00 RM'000 RM000

Statements of cash flows (Extract).-
Net cash from/(for) operating activities 43,248 6,351 {922) (2,491)
Net cash (for)ffrom investing activities {42,166) {166) 15,107 16,779
Net cash from financing activities 103 - 103 -
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48. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - DISCLOSURE OF REALISED AND UNREALISED

PROFITS/LOSSES

The breakdown of the retained profits of the Group and the Company at the end of the reporting
period into realised and unrealised profits/(losses) are presented in accordance with the directive
issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special
Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of
Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the

Malaysian Institute of Accountants, as follows:-

The Group The Company
30.9.2015 31.3.2014 30.9.2015 31.3.2014
RM'000 RM 000 RM'000 RWM0O00
Total (accumulated losses)iretained
profiis of the Company and iis
subsidiaries:
- realised (35,647} (38,437) {9,586) (9.572)
- unrealised 444 100 - -
(35,203) (38,337) (9,586) (9,572)
Total share of retained profits of
associate:
- realised (282) (286) - -
{35.485) (38,623) (9,586) {9,572)
Less; Consolidation adjustments 45,383 33,586 - -
At 30.9.2015/31.3.2014 9,808 (5.037) (9,586) (9,572)
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